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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

AT E

Revenue

Gross Profit
Profit for the year
Total Assets
Total Equity

Key Financial Ratios
Gross profit margin
Net profit margin
Return on equity
Return on total assets
Dividend payout ratio
Interest coverage ratio
Current ratio

Quick ratio

Gearing ratio

W am
el
FRm ]
MEE

4B AR

FTEMBLLER
EME
IES
[RZNEIE RS
BEELORE
KSR
FEEME
MENEE R
mEEEX
BABELER

2024
20244

(HK$ million)
(BER®ET)

470.7
66.6
10.9

282.0

211.3

14.1%
2.3%

5.2%

3.9%

40.0%

185.4 times {Z
4.1 times {2
4.0 times 1Z
0.01 times 12

Year ended 31 March
HEIAALEE

2023
2023%
(HKS million)
(B&#BmT)

Percentage
Change
Bt

462.2
77.5
24.7

275.0

211.3

16.8%
5.4%

11.7%

9.0%

40.0%

300.7 times 1&
4.6 times %
4.6 times &
0.01 times &

1.8%
-14.1%
-55.9%

2.5%
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On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company” or “Winson”), | present the
final results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group” or “Winson Group”) for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2024
(“FY2024").

Commercial activities in Hong Kong recovered gradually since the later
part of year 2022 and continued through year 2023, largely driven by
the substantial rise in inbound travelers and local consumer demand.
Albeit the recovery rush, general business and consumer sentiment is
marred by the uncertain macroeconomic environment, sluggish property
market, rising labour and material costs, and political tension worldwide.
At the same time, there had been sporadic reports of notable businesses
scaling down in operation, shifting of focal market etc. in the media. In the
FY2024, the Group was precisely caught in the difficulty situation of rising
operation costs, customers being conscious with cost control, and fierce
market competition.

In our bids for new and renewal contracts in our environmental hygiene
services (“EHS”) business segment, the Group not only encountered
pricing pressure from customers and our competitors, we also noted
the trend for property owners or business operators resorting to self-
managed hygiene and cleaning duties, instead of engaging external
service providers. While we appreciate that customers are becoming
more cost conscious and some service providers opted for pricing
battle, the Group refrained from excessive price competition and focused
on providing quality and specialised services. During the FY2024, the
Group has set up a dedicated “health care and facilities management”
team to serve the needs of our newly contracted customer in the public
health service sector. Furthermore, despite the current highly competitive
environment, the Group managed to secure new contracts with an
existing customer for EHS for additional railway facilities, a tertiary
education institute customer, and a landmark shopping centre in Hong
Kong lIsland South in FY2024. We believe the aforesaid achievement is
the result of Winson Group’s devotion to quality service, attentiveness to
customer needs, innovation in EHS solution, and upholding of corporate
social responsibilities.

FY2024 was also a turning point for the Group’s airline catering support
(“ACS”) business segment, as our operation has resumed after more
than two years of suspension since the COVID outbreak. The Group
maintained persistent communication with our ACS customers even
during period of suspension to keep abreast of market trend and acted
swiftly to recommence service upon request. We are currently in active
negotiation with customers on additional business opportunities and
expect further growth in this business segment in the coming year.
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
ERHRS

Looking ahead, the Group foresees great challenges in its EHS business
segment, both in terms of business development and safeguarding of
profitability. Obstacles on costing include labour shortage, rising operation
costs, solid waste charging regulation, etc.; while business expansion is
constrained by the conservative approach of business operators, which
will potentially exacerbate market shrinkage and intensify competition.
The Group has adopted a number of strategic moves to enhance its
market presence. We will continue to customise and innovate our EHS
offerings to fulfil changing market needs; in particular, the Group will
continue offering and devising new eco-friendly and technology-assisted
EHS solution, which matches the Group’s core value of being a socially
responsible entity and also facilitates the environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) goal of customers. The Group has also been
exploring horizontal business development opportunities and has in
FY2024 contracted with a potential business unit for cooperation in
developing property related synergised services, such as EHS, property
security, waste management etc. in the PRC. The Company has on
7 June 2024 entered into an agreement to acquire 37.5% interest in
a target group which is principally engaged in provision of (i) property
management services for residential, commercial and office premises,
(i) security services, and (i) horticulture services, in the PRC. Details
of the proposed acquisition, which is conditional upon (inter alia) the
approval of independent shareholders of the Company, are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 7 June 2024. The target group
possesses national grade 1 property services qualification; cleaning
service provider grade A certificate; security services license; and
professional grade A stone material maintenance qualification. The Board
envisages that the proposed acquisition will enable the Group to leverage
on its current EHS business and create strong synergies and expansion in
geographic coverage, thus benefiting the Group’s business and financial
performance for sustainable growth.

On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to express our heartfelt
gratitude to our business partners, staff members and shareholders
for their continuous support and we look forward to bringing you more
promising news of the Group soon.

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 19 June 2024

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBERERBRAR

BERF AREBRBERIBHREERHIE
(B EREBARESEHFBE P
i s ENER SIS Tath SEM AR
A BEREYMRERETS; AR £FER
SHIREANEENRE  BrlsERMmME T
BERRMATRE AEE RN T LK
BERAEDBHA - HPEFETE KA
MIRERBERBEUREEEPNIMIBENR ;
THEHR AEERFERERRENNIRRE
B SEEHNIRERBE RS FEEK
EERATEETEBNZOEERRT  IF
FERERMNRIE - LB E (TESG)) B
BoAREET—BERRBOERLEERS
W R2024 8 FTE B B B TE £ P B I5] 49
EIEREYMERBBRRE  NIRFRH
MERLZ - BFEYEIRS - KA AT B 12024
FRT7THI L — Bz WNEBEEEZEER
37.5%M R ZEEZEETENFENKSE
REGNEFE BERBAEBFTFNYEEER
%) 2 RIRS ; RNBEZ2RFE -EEAES
WEEEIE (B (AR EE) A28 BiIkE
HERBSSES) 23BN EAAETHES
2024F6ATHN A NG EREEHEEHKR—
MERFBED ; BEARBEARES ; RE
RFEIETR  REBEEAROGHREEE - EFT
BHREREEESEAEEAMNBEHEHIRE
MIREIRB EERERANHBEME > UKk
BAMIBRE MEAEBRNERE KT
XETE BEROFEER

FANEAREZTS BB EHRMANEE
BHE BTARENFEIFRUARLOH
B HRMAPFEERS BTHEXREZAE
BN AEBETHES

E
REEE

EH#H > 2024F6819H



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s operation result for the year ended 31 March 2024
(“FY2024”) was a combination of both ups and downs.

Our environmental hygiene services (“EHS”) business segment
maintained a relatively high contract renewal rate of 85.9% for FY2024,
despite a slight drop as compared to a renewal rate of 87.0% for the
previous year ended 31 March 2023 (“FY2023” or “Previous Year”).
Our bids for new contracts achieved encouraging results with a tender
success rate of 22.7% for FY2024, as compared to 19.7% for the
Previous Year. Total value of new contracts secured by the Group in
FY2024 amounted to over HK$70 million, including notable contracts
for servicing station facilities of urban rail lines, and additional contracts
with a public healthcare service provider and a tertiary education institute.
However, with the pandemic outbreak subsided, we noted a decline in
demand for ad-hoc and specialised EHS, such as deep sanitising, mist
disinfecting, etc. Overall, the revenue performance of EHS business
segment for FY2024 remained stable as comparable to the Previous Year.

The main challenge to the Group in FY2024 was rising operation costs
and labour shortage. Local labour costs and prices along the whole
product supply chain have heightened considerably in the past few years
in the expansionary fiscal environment, which dealt direct impact on the
profitability of the Group as we predominantly operate on fixed-price and
fixed-term contracts. On the other hand, businesses and property owners
are becoming more cost conscious in the current uncertain economic
atmosphere and we noted some operators in the EHS sector resorted to
aggressive pricing to outbid competitors. While the Group has been mindful
of and refrained from engaging in cutthroat competition, it has become
unviable to shift the cost increment to customers, and the Group will have
to absorb certain cost burden in our bids for projects. Thirdly and as noted
earlier, there had been a decline in ad-hoc and specialised EHS orders which
usually involved premium service and higher prices. All aforesaid factors
led to a deterioration in the profitability of our EHS business segment in
FY2024. The Group has already adopted a number of strategies to enhance
competitiveness and broaden our market presence, which are presented
under the “Chairperson’s Statement” section of this report.

The Group’s airline catering support (“ACS”) business segment
operation has resumed operation in FY2024 after more than two years
of suspension since the COVID outbreak. Albeit this business segment
is still at the early stage of recovery and did not contribute significant
revenue to the Group in FY2024, we are currently in active negotiation
with customers on additional business opportunities and expect further
growth in this business segment in the coming year.

A more detailed analysis of the Group’s financial performance for the
FY2024 is set out in the “Financial Review” section below.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw RO

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the FY2024, total revenue was approximately HK$470.7 million,
representing a slightly increase of approximately 1.8% (FY2023:
approximately HK$462.2 million). The increase in revenue mainly
contributed by the resume of airline catering support services and the
Group has successfully bid for three MTR cleaning contracts starting
from February 2024. The total revenue for these contracts was more
than approximately HK$18 million per month. These additional revenue of
FY2024 has been able to offset the lack of one-off disinfectant services of
FY2023.

The following is an analysis of Group’s revenue by segment:

RiA %5 [0l B8

L6

R202487 & > BIRR AN A470.7TE BB T B8
AIN4I1.8% (2023814 : #9462 20 B #
7o) c MR EEARMEENZER
BmEBAEBEMINKE =D E20245F2
BRBENAEBEZGN 2SN ERE
BRANESHE18EEETT % 52024 M EE
G 5 BE SRS R = 2023 FE Y — M
FRBFWENTE-

AEBBO B DWW T ¢

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000 %
THET THET
Environmental hygiene services IRIZE 4 IRFS 465,440 98.9 462,197 100.0
Airline catering support services 128 & B 3% 38 AR 75 5,267 1.1 = =
Total Hast 470,707 100.0 462,197 100.0

For the FY2024, revenue from environmental hygiene and related services
amounted to approximately HK$465.4 million (FY2023: approximately
HK$462.2 million). The airline catering support services resumed during the
FY2024 and had revenue approximately HK$5.3 million (FY2023: Nil).

Cost of Services

For the FY2024 and FY2023, the cost of services of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$404.1 milion and HK$384.7 million respectively,
representing approximately 85.9% and 83.2% of the Group’s revenue for
the corresponding years. The cost of services of the Group comprised
direct wages, consumables and sub-contracting fees. The increase in
cost of services mainly comes from the increase in labour cost. There
was a severe shortage of all kinds of labour across all industries. The
situation was even worse with the low pay, intensive labour nature job
category. Even with the introduction of mechanization on certain job
category, the costs still went up without any easing off.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit decreased from approximately HK$77.5 million for the
FY2023 to approximately HK$66.6 million for the FY2024. The overall
gross profit margin decreased from approximately 16.8% for the FY2023
to approximately 14.1% for the FY2024. The following table sets forth
breakdown of gross profit and gross profit margin by segment.

Year ended 31 March 2024

BEEE A

EMKRENE

EMNE2023 FENN77.58EBTRHLE
20248 FEHIAIG6.6 B BB  EEBENXR
20238 FEMA916.8% B /D E2024 FEBI4Y
14.1%° FRETZDEE DHNEF KREF]
ZAFMA o

Year ended 31 March 2023

H E2024F3831HILEE B E2023F3831HIEFE
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Profit  Profit Margin Profit Profit Margin
EF EFIE EF EFIES
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

FAET TFAET

Environmental hygiene services B35 %4 RS 65,819 14.1 77,485 16.8
Airline catering support services fi 2% B sk 18 BR 75 741 14.1 = =
Total st 66,560 14.1 77,485 16.8

The gross profit of environmental hygiene and related services decreased
by approximately 15.1% from approximately HK$77.5 million for the
FY2023 to HK$65.8 million for the FY2024. The gross profit margin
decreased from approximately 16.8% of the FY2023 to 14.1% for
FY2024. The gross profit of airline catering support services was
approximately HK$0.7 million and gross profit margin was approximately
14.1%.

The decrease of gross profit of environmental hygiene and related
services was mainly derived from increase of cost of services plus the
lack of high profit margin disinfectant services which counted for the drop
of one half of FY2024 gross profit although the airline catering support
services resumed in FY2024 and had gross profit of approximately
HKS$0.7 million.

General Operating Expenses

The general operating expenses increased by approximately 9.7% or
approximately HK$5.0 million, from approximately HK$51.4 million for the
FY2023 to approximately HK$56.4 million for the FY2024. The increase of
general operating expenses was mainly due to the increase of provision
of long service payment as compare with the FY2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIEE R

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs for each of the FY2024 and FY2023 were
approximately HK$0.1 million.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the
Year Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group’s profit and total comprehensive income attributable to owners
of the Company for the FY2024 and FY2023 were approximately HK$9.9
million and HK$24.7 million respectively, representing of approximately
2.1% and 5.4% of the respective year’s total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the FY2024, the Group’s capital expenditure included purchase
of property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately HK$31.1
million (FY2023: HK$0.7 million). These capital expenditures were mainly
financed by fund generated from operating activities.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s total current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$222.5 million (31 March 2023:
HK$239.4 million) and HK$54.9 million (31 March 2023: HK$51.8
million) respectively, while the current ratio was approximately 4.1 times
(81 March 2023: approximately 4.6 times).

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$282.0 million which were financed by total liabilities and total equity
of approximately HK$70.7 million and HK$211.3 million respectively.
As at 31 March 2024, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$93.6 million (31 March 2023: approximately HK$154.0
million).

The Group gearing ratio was 0.01 times as at 31 March 2024 (31 March
2023: 0.01 times), which was calculated based on the total lease liabilities
and bank borrowings over total equity of the Group.

There was no change to the Company’s capital structure during the
FY2024. As at 31 March 2024, the issued share capital of the Company
was HK$6,000,000 divided into 600,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each
(the “Shares”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had 1,789 (81 March 2023: 1,647)
employees. The Group enters into separate employment contracts
with each of the Group’s employees in accordance with the applicable
employment laws in Hong Kong. The remuneration package includes
basic salary, bonuses and other cash allowances or subsidies. The Group
conducts annual review on salaries, bonuses and promotions based
on the performance of each employee. The total staff costs and related
expenses (including directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 March
2024 were approximately HK$291.8 million, representing a increase of
approximately 2.9% or approximately HK$8.1 million as compared with
approximately HK$283.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Apart from basic remuneration, share options have been granted under
the pre-IPO share option scheme to recognise the contribution to the
Group by an executive Director and certain employees of the members
of the Group. Further share options may be granted under share option
scheme to attract and retain the best available personnel, provide
additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), as well as
promote the success of the business of the Group.

In order to provide quality services to customers, the Group provides
ongoing training regularly to relevant staff across different departments
with topics including but not limited to information technology,
environmental protection, ISO training, safety training as well as trainings
for supervisory roles, etc. Such trainings are either provided internally or
by external parties.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the Group generated most of the revenue and incurred most of
the costs in Hong Kong dollars for the FY2024, there was no significant
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation and the Group did not maintain
any hedging policy against foreign exchange risk. The management will
consider hedging significant currency exposure should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEw RO

CHARGE OVER GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings of carrying value of
approximately HK$23.2 million as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023:
approximately HK$24.2 million), were pledged to secure the bank loans.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2024, the Group had HK$0.1 million capital

commitments (31 March 2023: HK$23.4 million) in respect of contracted
but not provided for purchase of property, plant and equipment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the FY2024.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any significant investment held as at 31 March
2024.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have any plans for material investments or capital
assets as of 31 March 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Discloseable and connected transaction

On 7 June 2024, Perma Growth Investment Limited (“Perma Growth”) (as
purchaser), being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
with Lask JV Holding Co. Ltd (“Lask JV”) (as vendor), and Lask JV Facility
Management Services Limited (the “Target Company”), pursuant to which
Perma Growth has conditionally agreed to acquire, and Lask JV has
conditionally agreed to sell, 37.5% equity interests in the Target Company
for a cash consideration of RMB18,375,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,809,185) (the “Acquisition”).

The entering into of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the
transaction contemplated thereunder are subject to the approval of the
independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company. Details of the Acquisition are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 7 June 2024.

Except for the above mentioned, there were no other material events
subsequent to 31 March 2024 which would materially affect the Group’s
operating and financial performance as of the date of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of good corporate governance
in management and internal procedures so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Part
2 of Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance.

Save for the deviation of code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as
described below, the Board considers that, the Company has complied,
to the extent applicable and permissible, with the code provisions as
set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2024 and the
Directors will use their best endeavours to procure the Company to
comply with the CG Code and make disclosure of deviation from such
code in accordance with the Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct for securities transactions
by Directors. The Directors are reminded of their obligations under the
required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code on a regular
basis. The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
March 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, gives
direction and make decisions on the Group’s strategies, policies,
business plan and financial budget and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. In addition, to oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The Board has
delegated to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of the Board committees are
set out in this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised seven members,
including of four executive Directors, and three independent non-
executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan
Mr. Chan Chun Sing

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills appropriate
to the business requirements of the Company. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 37 to 43 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” that Madam Ng Sing Mui is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei
and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, and Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the sister of Mr. Sze Wai
Lun, the Board members do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among themselves.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board at all times met the
requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules of having a
minimum of three independent non-executive Directors (representing
at least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors. The Board has
assessed their independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and concluded that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has renewed the letter of appointment with each of the
independent non-executive Directors for a term of two years commencing
on 16 March 2024 unless terminated by not less than three months
prior written notice served by either party on the other or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment. Each of such
appointments is subject to the rotation and retirement provisions in the
articles of association of the Company.

CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires the responsibilities
between the chairperson and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Company has not appointed a
chief executive officer and the role and functions of chief executive officer
have been performed by all the executive Directors, including Madam
Ng Sing Mui, the chairperson of the Company (the “Chairperson”) and
an executive Director, collectively. The Board considered that this has
the advantages of allowing contributions from all executive Directors
with different expertise and will review the current situation from time to
time and shall make necessary arrangements when the Board considers
appropriate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted on 13 March 2017 a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”), a summary of which is set out as follows:

- The Company is committed to equality of opportunity in all aspects
of its business;

- The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including
skills, regional and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities;

- In forming its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time;
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- The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has
the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and to maximize the Board’s effectiveness; and

- Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised seven Directors,
two of whom are female. The Company targets to avoid a single gender
Board and will timely review the gender diversity of the Board based
on its own business model and specific needs. The Company believes
that the balance of gender in the Board would bring more inspiration
to the Board and enhance the business development of the Group.
As at the date of this annual report, the male to female gender ratio
in the Company’s workforce (including executive Directors and senior
management) is approximately 23:77.

MECHANISM TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT
VIEWS AND INPUTS TO THE BOARD

To ensure that independent views and input are available to the Board,
the following mechanism has been established by the Board:

- Where appropriate, the Company shall arrange suitable and
sufficient resources to cover any matters relating to the obtaining of
an independent opinion by the Board, including but not limited to
the engagement of a legal team or any other professionals for such
purpose;

- Where appropriate, the Directors shall give at least three working
days’ notice to the Company Secretary of the Company to obtain
an independent opinion, including but not limited to engaging a
professional team for such purpose;

- The Board is required to review its structure, size, composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity policy at
least annually to ensure that the composition of the Board complies
with the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules including
maintaining a balanced mix of executive and non- executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) so
that the Board has a strong element of independence which can
effectively exercise independent judgment; and
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- If all the independent non-executive Directors have served on the
Board for more than nine years, the Company should consider
to appoint a new independent non-executive Director at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
said mechanism during the year ended 31 March 2024 and considered
that it has been implemented effectively and will continue to monitor its
implementation and effectiveness on an annual basis.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board intends to hold Board meetings regularly at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than 14
days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors
with an opportunity to attend and propose matters to be discussed in the
meeting agenda.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice
will generally be given. The agenda and accompanying documents are
dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members at least 3 days
before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
documents and be adequately prepared for the meetings.

When Directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairperson prior to the
meeting. Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings
will be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by
the Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting
is held.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board held 5 Board meetings
and passed resolutions by way of written resolutions. The attendance
record of each Directors is set out in the table on page 25 of this annual
report.

GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 March 2024, 1 general meeting of the
Company, being the 2023 annual general meeting held on 2 August 2023
(the “2023 AGM”), was held. The attendance record of each Director is
set out in the table on page 25 of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 21 February 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan, Mr.
Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr. Chan Chun Sing with Mr. Chung Koon
Yan being the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review, in draft form, the annual report, interim report and accounts, and
to provide advice and comments to the Board. In this regard, members
of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board, the senior management
and auditor. The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matters that have been raised
by the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer (if any) or auditor. Members of the
Audit Committee are also responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management systems.

The corporate governance functions are also performed by the Audit
Committee. The corporate governance functions are to develop and
review the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance to
comply with the CG Code and make recommendations to the Board, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors, and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2024. The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee
at the above meetings is set out in the table on page 25 of this annual
report. In addition, the Audit Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation of written resolutions during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Audit Committee had
performed the following works:

- reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the engagement
of the Company’s auditor in respect of perform agree-upon

procedures for the interim results announcement;

- discussed with the Company’s auditor on the audit planning;
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- reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and the related
results announcement, documents and other matters or issues
raised by the Company’s auditor and made recommendation to the
Board the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor;

- discussed and confirmed with the management the effectiveness
of the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems, reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems and made recommendation to the Board;

= reviewed and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and

- reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code during
the year ended 31 March 2023 and corporate governance related
matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 and is of the opinion
that such consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules, other applicable legal
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor
Stephen and Mr. Chung Koon Yan and one executive Director, namely
Ms. Sze Tan Nei with Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen being the chairperson
of the Remuneration Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policies and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and to set up a formal and transparent procedure for
determination of such remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under code
provision E.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration packages of the Directors and the members of
senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2024. The attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 25 of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Remuneration Committee
performed the following works:

- discussed and reviewed the existing policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management; and

- made recommendations to the Board on salary adjustment
proposals for the executive Directors and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises one
executive Director, namely Madam Ng Sing Mui and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr.
Chan Chun Sing with Madam Ng Sing Mui being the chairperson of the
Nomination Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. In assessing the Board
composition, the Nomination Committee will take into account various
aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary),
including periodical review of such plans. The appointment of a new
Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision by
the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.
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The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well
as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in
particular, are set out as follows:

(@  participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standards of conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(c) serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for non-
executive Director) and other relevant Board committees, if invited;

(d) bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committee on which he or she serves the
benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation in
the Board/committee meetings;

(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

® ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(@ conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation
or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by
the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of
the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also be
evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
for filling the office of an independent non-executive Director with such
qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBERERBRAR

EREEARENCERNEBERARERAE
BARTDEHETRADEBRARHFERIE
NEREEREZTGZ L EFLHER E

CREBMBTERE  LEHETXFHEE
I8 .

=
W
pesi

AEFEEH HRE PR KRB
S EBER ITEZERBTENSE
BB 1L FIE

B
T

¢
\H:HI'H'

[
i

\

b) REEBENmEREZEREFER;

© BBRBEZEZEE FNZEEKRES
ZEE WIRFRTESFEEN LUKHE
thEREFEEEE T MEEH) ;

) REFFHR—RINEBRMBLER
BRNER2RERE TEEEH
MEEFERAMRBNENEZEER
BERERE -ER - BEERKRERU
k%7t ;

@ EBERAATDEERZEZEERSKE
BHENREREERRNFRER

h HERAFMRBNEZEEERTEFIRT
BV R BBE 5 K

@ BITEFEUETKIE HAEQATE
BXAREE AR EHRRE
R 5] L BVERRE  fEm RRA (W03
) e

MEREZEERBEASBIUIFNTES QA
RiE (HhEE) EHARAISE3.130F (EHASFT
B] BE S B F B R (ATE T) PR &R R R 5T 1
HFU M- EA BT AFEZEEANE
B ERAEREERRER UERRESER
BEBNEXERNGTNERYBEES
& (BP LR AISE3.10Q)F P AR E FIARRI B4R
HER) UIEEBILIFRTES-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRS

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended & E2024F3831HILEFE RLEES
31 March 2024 at which the members of the Nomination Committee BR{T1XEH T LHREELEETHERTE
reviewed the Board’s structure, size, composition and diversity, assessed HE 2 ZR#E BB AR AL b GBI
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and made  JEITEE 2B IL Iﬁ Rk i2023F )R E
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of retiing Directors FAZ FLEERFTEEANEEGFEHRIEERE
at the 2023 AGM. The attendance record of each member of the H-IBLEETIMEZGHZLEFEILHEERN
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 25 of this annual ~ ZAEFRF25E 7 TIKA ©

report.

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS, THE EFEgER - EFETELEE
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND AR R R 'QZerﬁ'P%;R

GENERAL MEETING

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings, Board committee & EE & E2024F3831H ILEERT 2
meetings and general meeting held during the year ended 31 March BHEZE L3 Z2FZLETTZMKREKX
2024 is set out as follows: GZHFEBEREINT

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee General

Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings Meeting
BREZEE RYZEET HWNEES

B4 EXges g3 g5 g3 IRERAE
Executive Directors
WITES
Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) 5/5 N/A 11 N/A 11
RREEZt (F/E) ~ER E
Ms. Sze Tan Nei 5/5 N/A N/A 2/2 1/1
MfE R £ TEA B
Mr. Ang Ming Wah 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
HEREES A NER NEA EA
Mr. Sze Wai Lun 4/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
MREfRmiTE ~ER B &
Independent non-executive Directors
BIFRITES
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen 5/5 3/3 1/1 2/2 1/1
RIFREE
Mr. Chung Koon Yan 4/5 3/3 N/A 2/2 11
BIEALE iEA
Mr. Chan Chun Sing 4/5 2/3 1 N/A 1/1
BRIREE o4 B A
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. All
Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) and have exercised their duties with
care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group. The
Company continuously updates the Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory and statutory
requirements from time to time to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. The Company also
provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
March 2024 to the Company. Training record of each Director received for
the year ended 31 March 2024 is summarised below:

EFNFEEIIREXEER

EFATHRRENERRE - 2RESFHA
BREHAERTRR (KRR WEE LEE
B PR EMMETRENEES  RORA
EENER -FARAFEARNESRHEAR L
TRAREMAFERZREREEREZ
EREREL UERKREETZIRAK
MAEREFHRFEXELABRNEHM 2
BT RHERAEMBIINERRENES
pSIE- Y853

FIBESEHE2UFESXERNOARAT
REHENEE2024F3831HIELFEES Y
Bk B E2024FE3H3 N HILEEERE
EMETEINZ SR -

Name of Director Type of Training
EEl4 1EesEE
Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) REMZ T (FE) A B
Ms. Sze Tan Nei M e+ A B
Mr. Ang Ming Wah HERESL S A B
Mr. Sze Wai Lun MR L A B
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RIFEREE A B
Mr. Chung Koon Yan BB AB
Mr. Chan Chun Sing FRIRE S A B
Notes: MIEE -

A attending seminars and/or conference and/or forums on subjects relating to A HEFTEAEMEETHERLEXEAZHFE

directors’ duties and corporate governance B/ e ER WwiE

B reading newspaper, journals and updates as regards legal and regulatory B HERMZEREEENEERITHEER

changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 by band is set out below:
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EFhESHREEREBF

B E2024F3ANHIEFE A RNE S ERE
(BIREE) WFbiZaEEHIWT -

Remuneration Band

Number of individual

#HENEEE A
Nil z -
HK$1 to HK$1,000,000 1702 1,000,000/ 7T 5
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 £ 1,500,000 75 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 75 £2,000,0007% 75 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T E2,500,0007 7T -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T £ 3,000,000/ 7T -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017#7T %E3,500,0007% 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T % 4,000,000 7T 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 75 £ 4,500,000/ 7T -

9

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company adopted its shareholders communication policy
(“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) on 13 March 2017 with the
objective of providing the Shareholders with information about the
Company and enabling them to engage actively with the Company and
exercise their rights as Shareholders in an informed manner.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual general
meetings and other general meetings that may be convened, as well
as by making available all the () corporate communication documents
including, but not limited to, copy of annual reports, interim reports,
notices of meeting, circulars, proxy forms (“Corporate Communication”);
(i) other documents issued by the Company which are published on the
website of the Stock Exchange for the information or action of holders of
any of its securities; (i) constitutional documents of the Company and the
Board committees, (iv) corporate information including list of Directors;
and (v) other Corporate Communication including the procedures
Shareholders can use to propose a person for election as a Director
on the Company’s website. Corporate Communication will be provided
to the Shareholders in plain language and in both English and Chinese
versions to facilitate the Shareholders’ understanding.
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Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings. Appropriate arrangements for the
annual general mestings shall be in place to encourage Shareholders’
participation. Board members, in particular, either the chairman of Board
committees or their delegates, appropriate management executives
and external auditors will attend annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions. Shareholders are encouraged to provide,
amongst other things, in particular, their email addresses to the Company
in order to facilitate timely and effective communications. The Company
recognises the importance of Shareholders’ privacy and will not disclose
Shareholders’ information without their consent, unless required by law to
do so.

In view of the above, the Board considered that the Shareholders
Communication Policy had been effectively implemented during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by Shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general
meeting.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions allowing Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at the general meetings under the articles
of association of the Company or the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands, as amended, modified and supplemented. Shareholders may
follow the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for any business specified in such written requisition. The written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by
the relevant Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of business
at Unit 1926, 19/F., Global Plaza, 1 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company by post
to Unit 1926, 19/F., Global Plaza, 1 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong, or via email at the contact information as provided
on the website of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The amended and restated memorandum and articles of association
of the Company was adopted by a special resolution passed by the
Shareholders at the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company held
on 2 August 2022 and is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. There was no change in articles of association of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and oversees such systems on an ongoing
basis, while ensuring a review of the effectiveness of these systems of the
Group is conducted at least annually. The scope of such review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are designed
to managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities)
of risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, and
management has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee and
the Board on the effectiveness of these systems for the year ended 31
March 2024.

Main Features of the Risk Management System

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for
the long-term and sustainable growth of a business. The Group’s risk
management structure and the major responsibilities of each role of the
structure are summarized below:

[ % B 1 ke A BB B

EECHAREERABEER
MEEE

EFgRNECERAREERANBEZERR
TRHEEERMAR TERELSE—XR
BN AEBZERMAB WML - ZF BT
LEBEFMEEARRE BEVB KBRS
REZE - AEENEREERABEERR
SR EERRMIFHFREER X BT
R WAEREFL IR E R R BRI IBKAF
A EMIFAEHBIREE o

EX2ERHEAREERANMEENHE (&
D) BFEREZES MEEEERE
ZEEEREFTERIAXFRABE2024F
SA31HIEFENAM -

R ERRARHNEERR

AABRA TENRBEEREBRAA
FEIREHEZ -s5ENAREERE
RERBAZAGHEIZREHANT

Board Audit Committee Management Risk Owners
E=Ay BZEEE BIEfE REiEEaE A
Role Major Responsibilities At TERST
Board —  determines the business strategies and objectives EE& — EBEEAEBEZEHRIEHE

of the Group, and evaluates and determines the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives;

- oversees management in the design, implement
and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems;

- oversees the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis and
ensures the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems;
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Role

Major Responsibilities

FERE

Audit
Committee

Management

reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems at least
annually, and such review should cover all material
controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls;

reviews the emerging risks of the Group annually,
and the risk management and the internal controls
in place to address those risks;

discusses the risk management and internal
control systems with management of the Group
to ensure that the management of the Group has
performed its duty to have an effective system.
The discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function and to
rectify any weaknesses that may be revealed from
time to time;

considers major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and the Group’s management’s response to these
findings;

designs, implements and ongoing assesses the
Group’s risk management and internal control
systems;

gives prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on risk management and internal control
matters as delegated by the Board, on Audit
Committee’s initiative or raised by the external
consultant(s);

provides confirmation to the Board and the
Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems;
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Role Major Responsibilities At FTEBSE
Risk Owners -  ultimately accountable for ensuring the risk is EREBEA — EKESHREAREIE
managed appropriately; and EEE &M

= responsible for, or oversight of, activities to
manage each identified risk.

In addition, the Company engaged an external consultant to conduct a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Main Features of the Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The components of the framework are shown as
follow:

Control - a set of standards, processes and structures
Environment that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

Risk Assessment a dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how

risks should be managed.

Control Activities — actions established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives
are carried out.

Information and internal and external communication to provide
Communication the Group with the information needed to carry
out day-to-day controls.

Monitoring - ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is
present and functioning.
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Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

|dentification - identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

Evaluation - analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management = consider the risk responses, ensure effective

communication with the Board in respect of the
risks and on-going monitor the residual risks.

Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are submitted
to the Audit Committee and the Board annually. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, had performed a review on the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including,
but not limited to, () the changes, in the nature and extent of significant
risks and the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business
and the external environment, (i) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems, (i) the
extent and frequency of communication of monitoring results to the
Audit Committee and the Board which enables them to assess control of
the Company and the effectiveness of risk management, (iv) significant
control failings or weaknesses that have been identified, and (v) the
effectiveness of the Company’s processes for financial reporting and
Listing Rules compliance, and considered that the risk management
and internal control systems were effective and adequate for the year
ended 31 March 2024. No significant areas of concern that might affect
the financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group were identified. The scope of such review covers
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions and their attitude
against internal control of the Group. The Board will continue to work with
the management to discuss and follow-up on the status of remediation of
the internal control weaknesses and to monitor the risks of the Group in
the coming years.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling
and Dissemination of Inside Information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an inside
information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have
been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

- access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.

- transmission of inside information in electronic form should be
password-protected.

- prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area.

- code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any
reference to them would not be linked to the projects themselves to
minimize possibilities of unintentional leakage.

- trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with
reasonable care.

- confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

- officers and employees other than the designated representative
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBERERBRAR

REREGARHENEFNA

ERES

mMARAEREREERNRHEHENRARILERR
ARARBENEEE - EEME - B EARE
M AEBRTRRAL BHEARHE S BERKRE
FF o B B AR RS T & E 1 i LU R
FREBEREUNILEREBAEBRNRNE
ME R

— (BLHESTRBEENANTHEE-

- BEREFEANARBEERETIE-

— RIESRARBEmARHER-

- HREREXREARRLE £FREANE
BERAEESIFEREERS  BREEER
RERRIAENE -

— PRFERARHEENEESRMEIIHEN
TOREARSEIRDOPIREUGEER
ARREBNEE

- FZEEEAEAREEHASEERTBH

o

— BREEARN BUEBERMESARSE
NEREEE DMK EE S/
ANERREFH IPE S o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, as opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate
internal audit department, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit department.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1”), to provide
compliance and full range of company secretarial services to the Group
in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing regulatory
environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Mr. Tse Kam Fai (“Mr. Tse”), the representative of Uni-1, has been
appointed as the company secretary with effect from 1 October 2022.
His primary corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Sze Tan
Nei, an executive Director.

For the year ended 31 March 2024, Mr. Tse has undertaken not less than

15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the total fees in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company,
are set out as follows:

1% S EM BN =

B E2024F3B31HIEFE » SiA AR BN
ERUGREEAMEBAARATRERH
B RFBESHIRBZBEBRETIWMT ¢

Services rendered

Fee paid/payable

FriR B AR TS et EHER
HK$ 000
FHET
Audit services: BETERTS
— Annual audit for the year ended 31 March 2024 —EE202453831HIEFEEZ FEHE 600
Non-audit services: JEBE RS -
— Perform agreed-upon procedures for interim results — st RHAZEAE A S HITIHERRF
announcement 80
— Other services —HA RS 270
Total #aEt 950

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements of the Group and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and the Company’s management will provide
information and explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company in respect of its reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024 is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages
67 to 73 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Ng Sing Mui (2E2#) (“Madam Ng”), aged 63, a co-founder of
the Group, has been a Director since 31 May 2016. Madam Ng was re-
designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is currently
acting as the Chairperson. She is also the chairperson of the Nomination
Committee and holds directorships in all subsidiaries of the Company.
Madam Ng is primarily responsible for the strategic planning, operation
planning and overall management of the Group.

Madam Ng has more than 30 years of experience in the environmental
hygiene services industry in Hong Kong. Building the business from the
ground up since December 1983, Madam Ng has held a leadership role
in the overall management and business development of the Group.

Madam Ng has been a certified associate fellow of the Institute of
Managers and Leaders Australia and New Zealand (formerly known as
Australian Institute of Management) since September 1995 and has
become a fellow member since June 2019. She was also awarded a
Training Certificate on Fire Prevention (Commercial Sector) issued by the
Occupational Safety & Health Council in August 2001.

Madam Ng is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun,
both are executive Directors. She is the sole director of Rich Cheer
Development Limited and Sze’s Holdings Limited, both companies have
disclosable interests in the Shares under the provisions in Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”). Madam Ng is also the sole shareholder
of Rich Cheer Development Limited.
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Ms. Sze Tan Nei (Fif3E) (‘Ms. Sze"), aged 44, joined the Group in
February 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016.
Ms. Sze was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February
2017. She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and holds
directorships in several subsidiaries of the Company. She is primarily
responsible for strategic planning, operation planning and compliance
control of the Group’s business operation.

Ms. Sze graduated from Queensland University of Technology,
Australia, with a Bachelor of Business (Management) in October 2004.
She completed the Pest Control and Pesticide Safety for Industrial
Undertakings course organised by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2008. Ms. Sze was certified as a Quality Management Systems Auditor
by the International Register of Certificated Auditors, by completing the
Lead Auditor Training Course (in accordance to international standards
ISO 9001:2008 & ISO 19011:2002) co-organised by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency and International Management Systems
Associates Limited in October 2009. She has also completed the
Environmental Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training
Course for ISO 14001:2004 & ISO 19011:2002 in January 2010, and
the Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems Auditor/Lead
Auditor Training Course for BS OHSAS 18001:2007 & ISO 19011:2002 in
April 2011. In July 2017, she has completed the Intensive ISO 9001:2015
QMS and ISO 14001:2015 EMS Internal Auditor Training organised
by SGS Hong Kong Limited. Ms. Sze has awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety
Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training Course issued by
SGS United Kingdom Ltd. in September 2019. She was also accredited
as a certified ESG Planner by International Chamber of Sustainable
Development in April 2023.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sze was employed as property
management assistant in April 2005 by Jones Lang LaSalle Management
Services Ltd, being a company engaging in the provision of services
specialising in real estates. She was subsequently promoted to the
position of assistant management surveyor in March 2006 and remained
in that position until she left such company in August 2006. In August
2006, she was employed as a marketing assistant in the communications
department of Hongkong Land Group Limited, being a company
engaging in property investment, management and development until
February 2007.

Ms. Sze is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and
an executive Director, and the sister of Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an executive
Director.
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Mr. Ang Ming Wah (GEBRZE) (‘Mr. Ang”), aged 68, joined the Group in
March 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Mr. Ang
was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is
primarily responsible for the business development and planning, control
and management of the Group’s business operation.

Mr. Ang graduated from the University of Waterloo, Canada, with a
Bachelor of Mathematics in October 1978, and Bachelor of Arts in
October 1979. He also completed an executive program organised
by the Business School of the University of Michigan in 1997. Mr. Ang
was admitted as an associate member of the Hong Kong Management
Association in 1986 and was appointed as an “Occupational Safety and
Health Ambassador” by the Occupational Safety & Health Council in
2008.

Mr. Ang has over 30 years of experience in the environmental hygiene
services industry in Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ang was
employed by Reliance Services Company Limited (currently known as
ISS Facility Services Limited), being a company engaging in the provision
of environmental hygiene related services, as operations manager in May
1986. He was subsequently promoted to senior operations manager in
October 1988. Mr. Ang left such company in February 2000 and his last
position held was director in operation department. Mr. Ang subsequently
joined Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd. (currently known as Best
Result Environmental Services Limited), being a company engaging in the
provision of cleaning services, as general manager in July 2000 and was
appointed as director and general manager in 2004. He held that position
until he left such company in September 2006.

Mr. Sze Wai Lun (BEfE®&) (‘Mr. Sze”), aged 41, joined the Group in
September 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Mr.
Sze was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017. He
is primarily responsible for the overall management of IT development of
the Group.

Mr. Sze graduated from Giriffith University, Australia, with a Bachelor
of Commerce in December 2006, and a Diploma of Commerce from
Queensland Institute of Business and Technology (currently known
as Griffith College), Australia, in February 2003. He has also obtained
a Diploma in SME Company Operation & Management from Hong
Kong Productivity Council in September 2014, a Certificate of Data
Centre Operation and Maintenance Engineers Course from Hong
Kong Productivity Council in February 2015 and a Certificate of CGEIT
(Certified in the Governance of Enterprise IT) from Hong Kong Productivity
Council in May 2015. Mr. Sze has been admitted as a member of ISACA
(Information Systems Audit and Control Association) since February
2021.
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Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sze was employed by Citicorp International
Limited, being a company which provides banking and financial services
as a securities operations professional in the securities operations
department of the operations and technology group in April 2007. He
held that position until he left such company in August 2007.

Mr. Sze is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and an
executive Director, and the brother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive
Director.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (RiF) (Chinese alias: RIFE),
M.H. (“Mr. Yuen”) aged 76, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on the Group’s strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct. He is also the chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yuen graduated with a Master of Science in Interdisciplinary Design
and Management from The University of Hong Kong in November 2013.
He is an Eminent fellow member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, fellow member of Chartered Institute of Housing, fellow
member of the HK Institute of Housing and a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. He has more than 50 years of real estate
experience from both public and private sectors.

Mr. Yuen was the ex-chairman of the Industry Training Advisory
Committee (property management) of the Education Bureau, past
chairman of the Real Estate Service Training Board, ex-committee
member of the Employee Retraining Board, ex-member of the Land and
Building Advisory Committee, past chairman of the Chartered Institute of
Housing (HK branch), past president of the HK Association of Property
Management Companies and past president of the HK Institute of Real
Estate Administrators. Mr. Yuen has retired from the office of executive
director of a real estate investment fund and has been appointed as its
non-executive chairman since June 2017.

Mr. Yuen was an independent non-executive director of Kafelaku Coffee
Holding Limited (formerly known as Li Bao Ge Group Limited) (whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1869) from January 2020 to April 2022, an independent non-executive
director of Janco Holdings Limited (whose shares are listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8035) from May 2021 to April 2022.
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Mr. Chung Koon Yan ($2¥E ) (‘Mr. Chung”), aged 60, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017 and
is responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group’s
strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct. He is also the
chairperson of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Chung graduated with a Master of Professional Accounting from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2000. He is a practicing
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Chung is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales since February 2007 and November 2014 respectively. He is also a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Chung is currently a director of Chiu, Choy & Chung CPA Ltd. and
has more than 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Unity
Group Holdings International Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1539) and an independent
non-executive director of Great World Company Holdings Limited (whose
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8003).

Mr. Chan Chun Sing (FBR#RZ) (‘Mr. Chan”), aged 44, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is
responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group’s strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct. He is also a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chan has over 22 years of experience in the fields of accounting
and auditing matters of listed companies in Hong Kong. He obtained
a bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2001. In November 2015, Mr. Chan obtained an
executive master of business administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 2017. He is also an associate
member of both the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the
Chartered Governance Institute since June 2021. Mr. Chan worked for
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September 2001 to July 2011 and his
last position held was senior manager in the audit department.
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Mr. Chan was the chief financial officer of Lap Kei Engineering (Holdings)
Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1690) from February 2015 to December 2020
and has been the company secretary of such company since January
2018. He was an independent non-executive director of Lai Si Enterprise
Holding Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2266) from January 2017 to February 2022. Mr.
Chan served as an executive director of Janco Holdings Limited (whose
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8035) from
October 2019 to December 2020 and served as its company secretary
from October 2019 to May 2021. Mr. Chan joined a private company as
chief financial officer from July 2013 to February 2014 and was appointed
as executive director from March 2014 to April 2015 and was designated
as non-executive director from May 2015 to March 2017. He has also
been a director of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited since
November 2019.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Chi Kong (&) (‘Mr. Leung”), aged 62, is the assistant
general manager of the Group (operation). He is primarily responsible
for the overall management of sites operations of the Group. Mr. Leung
has over 35 years of experiences in the environmental hygiene services
industry in Hong Kong. He was employed by Reliance Services Company
Limited (currently known as ISS Facility Services Limited), being a
company engaging in the provision of environmental hygiene related
services, as an assistant foreman. He left such company in February
2001 and the last position held was site manager. Mr. Leung then joined
Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd. (currently known as Best Result
Environmental Services Limited), being a company engaging in the
provision of cleaning services, where he worked as assistant operations
manager in February 2001 and was subsequently promoted to operation
manager in October 2004, where he held such position until he left
the company in September 2006 and joined the Group in February
2007. Mr. Leung has obtained a Certificate Programme on Supervisory
Management from The Hong Kong Management Association in March
2000 and he was awarded a Training Certificate on Safety for Cleansing
Work (managers and supervisors) by the Occupational Safety & Health
Council in December 2009. Mr. Leung also obtained an Aluminum Mobile
Working Platform Training Certificate issued by Origin Production Limited
trading as The Hong Kong Safety Training Association in July 2004 and
held a Construction Industry Safety Training Certificate from June 2004 to
June 2007.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Kai Chi (B EXE) (“Mr. Chow”), aged 55, is the senior finance
manager of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the financial
reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control matters of the
Group. Mr. Chow obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Business Accounting
in September 1999 from the University of Lincolnshire & Humberside
(currently known as the University of Lincoln), the United Kingdom by long
distance learning. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and was admitted as a member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in October 2001.

Mr. Chow has over 30 years of experience in accounting and finance
industry in Hong Kong. He was employed as a clerk in the finance
department by Nanyang Brothers Tobacco Co., Ltd, a tobacco
manufacturer in June 1988. He was promoted to senior clerk in January
1991 and held that position until he left in August 1991. Mr. Chow then
joined Yue Po Engineering Co., Ltd, being a company that provides
kitchen design services and supplies catering equipment as senior clerk
in the accounting department in March 1992 and was promoted to
account officer in October 1992, in which position he remained until he
left such company in March 1995. He then joined Siu Wor Trading Co.
Ltd, being a company engaging in jewellery trading related business as
an accountant in April 1995 and left the company in January 1998. Mr.
Chow subsequently joined Trans Asia Computer Superstore Ltd., being
a company engaging in sales of computer related equipment as an
accountant from June 1998 to August 1999. He then worked as a senior
accountant in Hung Mau Realty & Construction Ltd, being a company
engaging in the provision of general construction works from November
1999 to July 2002. From July 2002 to April 2005, Mr. Chow worked as
an accountant at Broadway Photo Supply Ltd, then being an exporter of
camera and photographic equipment. He then worked as an accountant
in Suga Electronics Limited, being a company providing advanced
electronics manufacturing services, from May 2005 to August 2005 and
joined the Group in November 2005.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business of the Group is provision of environmental hygiene
and related services and airline catering support services in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular under the following separate sections:

(@ review of the Company’s business and financial position, and
development and future prospects of the Company’s business
are shown in the “Chairperson’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report;

(b)  the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are shown in
the sub-section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” below;

(c) the Group’s environmental policies and performance are shown in
the sub-section headed “Environmental Policies and Performance”
below;

(d) the Group’s key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers are shown in the sub-section headed “Relationships with
Key Stakeholders” below;

(e) the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are
shown in the sub-section headed “Compliance with Laws and
Regulations” below; and

) details of key performance indicators are shown in the “Financial
Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

Except for the event as mentioned in the sub-section headed “Event after
Reporting Period” in “Management Discussion and Analysis”, no other
significant events that have an effect on the Group subsequent to the
year ended 31 March 2024,
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly or
indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The risk factors set out
below are those that could result in the Group’s businesses, financial
conditions, results of operations or growth prospects differing materially
from expected or historical results. Such factors are by no means
exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be other risks in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Operational Risks

The majority of the Group’s service contracts are awarded through
tendering, which typically have fixed terms ranging from one to three
years. However, the Group is exposed to keen competition from its
existing and new competitors which also run similar businesses in Hong
Kong.

Competitive tendering process increases the uncertainty of contract
renewal. The financial result and profitability of the Group may be
negatively impacted if there is a reduction in volume of service or failed to
maintain business relationships with existing customers.

The Group has established stable business relationship with major
customers and achieved a high contract renewal rate of 85.9% for the
year ended 31 March 2024.

To mitigate the impact of uncertainty of contract renewal, the Group
has established a diverse customer base ranging from government
department in Hong Kong, tenants of various premises to subsidiaries
of multinational companies. At the same time, the Group expands its
source of revenue by exploring new business opportunities, including
residential, hospitality and commercial projects during the year ended 31
March 2024. These allow the Group to spread the operational risk across
multiple customers, reducing dependence on any one customer and
providing more stability to the business.

In order to maintain high quality level of service, the Group has
established an evaluation mechanism with mutual assessment by internal
and external teams of professional audits. Besides, the management
monitors and reviews the provision of resources, training, infrastructure
and working environment to achieve the standard of service and
customers’ satisfaction. For services that are not up to standard, remedial
action will be carried out and preventive measure will be formulated for
staff's guidelines. To enhance communication with customer, customer
service team is established for handling the feedback of clients, to satisfy
the customers’ requirements.
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Besides, fully utilize its experience and resources allows the Group
enhance its competitive edge, resulting in higher opportunities in
contract awarding. Most customers are large scaled corporations, with a
higher expectation on service performance. Comparing to small service
providers in the market, the Group has higher capacity with good track
record to fuffill the strict requirement of those large scaled customers.
Moreover, the Group creates value for customers by extending the
service package of customer from general cleaning services to other
environmental hygiene and support services, which is a factor to retain
and attract customers.

On the other hand, one of the principal businesses of the Group is to
render environmental hygiene and related services in Hong Kong, such
as garbage collection and disposal, and cleanliness of the workplace.
Manpower plays a crucial role to the environmental hygiene service, both
quantity and quality of labour directly affect the output, hence the Group’s
reputation.

Owing to the unfavourable working environment and keen demand of
the labour market, capable labour, especially the frontline staffs, tends
to choose an offer with incentive benefit, or even switch the career field
directly. The Group may be unable to recruit personnel in a timely manner
to fulfill the operational needs.

If the Group is unable to retain existing staff and/or recruit sufficient staff
in a timely manner to cope with the demand of existing or future jobs, the
Group’s operations and profitability may be adversely affected.

The Group has offered an attractive remuneration packages with fringe
benefits for office and frontline staff s retention and motivation purposes,
including comprehensive medical benefits, flexible leave arrangement.
Discretionary bonus is entitled according to the performance of staffs so
as to encourage them to stay with the Company.

Apart from remuneration, extensive training is also provided to office and
frontline staff regularly, including but not limited to information technology,
environmental protection, ISO training, safety training, trainings for
supervisory roles as well as induction training for new staff, to maintain
high quality service and support career development. Besides, funding
scheme for training is established to encourage continuing professional
education for job enhancement. Staffs may apply for subsidies, which
approved by Department Head, HR Department and Managing Director.
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Moreover, the Group provides a clear promotion ladder and conducts
performance appraisal regularly to determinate the salary adjustment and
promotion of staff.

Besides, HR Department is responsible for analysing the personnel
data and ratio of deployment among full-time staff, part-time staff and
subcontracting staff regularly. Based on these information, appropriate
advice and measures are suggested to the middle management and
supervisor in the weekly meeting for decision making and resources
allocation.

In order to reach a greater exposure to the potential candidates to recruit
suitable office and frontline staff timely, online advertisements, newspaper
advertisements, social media advertisements, and employee referral are
the recruitment channel used by the Group. Furthermore, the Group has
applied to import workers through Enhanced Supplementary Labour
Scheme, to relieve the labor shortage.

Compliance Risks

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
insurance coverage of the Group may not adequately protect it against
certain risks.

Through close monitoring of various legal and regulatory pronouncements
from the government by its legal and compliance personnel, the Group
is able to keep itself updated with various regulatory requirements and
complies with local labour laws and regulations such as the Employment
Ordinance and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance. A comprehensive
work safety management and supervision system is also established for
enhancing safety performance. In addition, the management will review
the insurance coverage on an ongoing basis.
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Financial Risks

Please also refer to note 31 to the financial statements for the financial
risks facing by the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Company treats human resources as the Group’s valuable assets.
Training and retaining good employees are always at top priorities.

Besides on-the-job trainings and funding for continuous learning, two
committees are set up to ensure good physical and psychological health
of our staffs. Workshops are held regularly to raise staff's awareness
of occupational health and safety. The risk-free working environment
is guaranteed by the certification of OHSAS 18001 Occupational
Health and Safety Management System. In addition, the Company also
organizes a range of recreational activities so as to foster team spirit.

Customers

Keeping strong relationship with the customers is critical to maintain the
competitiveness of the Group.

For servicing industry with human as the main concern, it is vital to have
an independent, comprehensive quality assurance mechanism in order to
maintain high level of service, in which rule-of-man style and subjectivity
in the old days can be eliminated. In view of this, the Company has
established an evaluation mechanism with mutual assessment by internal
and external teams of professionals audits. In order to achieve a set
standard of service and customers’ satisfaction, the work is monitored
and reviewed in various aspects including provision of resources, training,
infrastructure and working environment, with customers’ expectation as
the foundation. For services that are not up to high standard, remedial
action will be advised and implemented with continuous improvement
follow through. Also, preventive measure will be formulated as future
guidelines.

Suppliers and Sub-contractors

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers and sub-contractors
which are selected with reference to, among other things, material/service
quality, reliability and price. The Group performs annual evaluation on the
Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors with respect to raw materials/
service quality, reliability and timely delivery.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has been putting unremitting efforts in environmental
protection by introducing sustainable machineries, devices and
equipment for operation.

The Group maintains close collaborations with green groups and
chambers of commerce to promote the concept of sustainable
development. The Group’s determination is marked by the ISO 14001
Environmental Management System accreditation obtained in 2001.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board was unaware of any non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published financial results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024, together with
the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
four years ended 31 March 2023, is set out on page 148 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the state
of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 74 to 78 of this annual report.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HKO.727 cents
(2023: HK1.650 cents) per Share for the year ended 31 March 2024,
amounting to a total of HK$4,362,000. The proposed final dividend
is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 20 August 2024 (the
“2024 AGM”) and is expected to be payable on or about Monday, 16
September 2024.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
15 August 2024 to Tuesday, 20 August 2024, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, all transfers of Shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged with the
Company'’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
14 August 2024.

For determining the entittement of the Shareholders to the aforesaid
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 26 August 2024 to Wednesday, 28 August 2024,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfers of Shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, which is
subject to approval of the Shareholders at the 2024 AGM, all transfers of
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 23 August 2024.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2024 are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$6,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary Shares was
600,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

There was no movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 March 2024.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2024 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 76 of this annual report and note
25 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
the Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$54 million.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to
allow Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider various
factors including but not limited to the Group’s overall results of operation,
financial condition, working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements, liquidity position, future expansion plans, general
economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group. Any declaration
and payment as well as the amount of the dividends will be subject
to any restrictions under the applicable laws and regulations and the
Company’s constitutional documents. The Company does not have any
predetermined dividend distribution proportion or distribution ratio. Any
future declarations of dividends may or may not reflect the Company’s
historical declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion
of the Directors.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/
or cancel the dividend policy at any time, and the dividend policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan
Mr. Chan Chun Sing

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Yuen Ching Bor
Stephen, Mr. Chung Koon Yan and Mr. Chan Chun Sing shall retire from
office as Directors by rotation at the 2024 AGM and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the 2024 AGM.

The Company has renewed the service contract with each of the
executive Directors for a term of three years commencing on 16 March
2023 unless terminated by not less than three months prior written notice
served by either party on the other or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of the service contract. The Company has also renewed the letter
of appointment with each of the independent non-executive Directors for
a term of two years commencing on 16 March 2024 unless terminated
by not less than three months prior written notice served by either party
on the other or otherwise in accordance with the terms of the letter
of appointment. Each of such appointments is subject to the rotation
and retirement provisions in the articles of association of the Company.
Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meetings of the Company pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company.
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Each of Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Chung Koon Yan and Mr. Chan
Chun Sing, being the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2024
AGM, does not have service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without the payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 37 to 43 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined under
paragraph 15 of Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules) to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is or was a party, and in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director, or the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at 31 March 2024 or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2024.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed at 31 March 2024 or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2024.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of
this annual report was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices; provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter
in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said
persons.

Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2024
and up to the date of this annual report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) being
in force for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company
(if made by the Company).

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements. The Remuneration Committee will review and recommend
the Board the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors
and senior management with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities, contribution, and time devoted to the Group and the
overall performance of the Group.

The Directors and senior management may also be granted options
under the share option scheme of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed on 21
February 2017, the principal terms of the pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were approved and adopted. The
purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to aid the Company in
retaining key and senior employee of the Group. Principal terms of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were set out in the Prospectus and note
26 to the financial statements. An aggregate of 192,000 share options at
an exercise price of HK$0.42 per Share, being the offer price under the
Share Offer, were granted on 23 February 2017 to an executive Director
and certain employees of the Group. No further options will be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are as follows:
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Number of Share Options
BREHE
Outstanding Exercise
Outstanding ~ Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed as at Price
Category of as at 1 April during during during 31 March  per Share
participants 2023 the year the year the year 2024 Option Exercisable Period
420235 20245 5
sB1E REA REA O RER B3R BERE i
2HEEER FT EfT g P35 EXh) T (BN
Director
EZ
Ang Ming Wah 64,000 - - - 64,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
(Note)
HHE 04287 2017838168 £202719F3H15H
(Fizt)
Sub-total 64,000 - - - 64,000
gt
3 Employees in 80,000 - - - 80,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
aggregate (Note)
AH3%ESR 04287 2017838168 £20279F3H15H
(Pt 3E)
Sub-total 80,000 S = = 80,000
st
Total 144,000 = = = 144,000
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Note:

All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may only
exercise their options in the following manner:

@

(b)

50% of the options granted are exercisable during the period from 16 March
2017 to 15 March 2027; and

the remaining 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the period from
16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved by a resolution of the sole Shareholder
passed on 21 February 2017. No options under the Share Option
Scheme have been granted since its adoption.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as
follow:

(@)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers
substantial shareholders, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group and to promote the success of the business of the Group.

Participant of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant, adviser, substantial shareholder, distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider of
the Group, options to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance
with paragraph (c) below for such number of Shares as it may
determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.
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(c)

()

(e)

U]

(9)

(h)

U]

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (i) the nominal value of Share
on the date of grant of the option.

Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares of the Company available for
issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 60,000,000 Shares, represent 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Vesting period of option
The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period for
which an option must be held before an option can be exercised.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing on 21 February 2017, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2024, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

() Long position in the Shares

ESERETBETBRASRERT
By {] AR Gk 7 B 2 B {7 ~ 4B R
R kBEFZETRRXE

R2024F38318H > EERARBEFEITHA
ERAABREEAEREE (EEREBH A
HRE 5B SEXVER) 2 Bj 10 ~ ABRERD R &S
BBIRERS MAE RO EXVERHT7 80
BHEARNB KGRz BRI NS (B1ER
EREBEBSFRBPEROZZEBXEEER
BABBZEZIXR)  WRIEES MBS
BB SE352E BE N Z IR X T B MR
ERRe AREBEEEFUZREENS
EAB R IR EUT ¢

) REEBFE

Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage
shares held/ of interest in
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest interested in the Company
Fi¥s BB
EmRRn, .  EEAREES
B 81 #E=mtE MRk H B B4 BE 2L
Ng Sing Mui Interest of a controlled corporation; 432,000,000 72%
Settlor of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
L YA ] REEEER ; 2REEMESEA (1) 432,000,000 72%
Sze Tan Nei Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 432,000,000 72%
PR REFERTA (TEE2) 432,000,000 72%
Sze Wai Lun Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 3) 432,000,000 72%
kR 2RETEZmA (IEE3) 432,000,000 72%
Ang Ming Wah Beneficial owner (Note 4) 64,000 0.01%
HAEFEE EmEA A (fist4) 64,000 0.01%

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBERERBRAR



(I) Long position in the ordinary shares of
associated corporations
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() REBCZEERKRINETE

Number of
Name of associated shares held/ Percentage
Name of Directors corporation Capacity/nature of interest interested in of interest
Fr¥s/ %B
TR R
BEiL B EE R TE B/ &t E R &E Bt
Ng Sing Mui Sze's Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation; 1 100%
Settlor of a discretionary trust
=R IEERERERAT RELERT ; REGEVE 1 100%
EEA
Rich Cheer Development Limited ~ Beneficial owner 1 100%
EIREREARAD BmEBA 1 100%
Sze Tan Nei Sze's Holdings Limited Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
T FHE EERERERAT 2RETZEA 1 100%
Sze Wai Lun Sze's Holdings Limited Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
IR m TR ERAS 2RELZ@EA 1 100%
Notes: B 5T

All the 432,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings
Limited, which is in turn held by Rich Cheer Development Limited
acting as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust
is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Ng Sing Mui as settlor and
Rich Cheer Development Limited as trustee on 8 January 2015. The
beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun
and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. Madam Ng Sing Mui is the settlor of the Sze Family
Trust and the sole director of Sze’s Holdings Limited and therefore Madam
Ng Sing Mui is deemed or taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000
Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of
the SFO. Madam Ng Sing Mui is also the sole director and shareholder of
Rich Cheer Development Limited.

Ffr5432,000,0008% A& 17 ¥9 FH 1 EC 4% 3%
BRABDIEBHES MEKERARA
SHERERBRERAD (BHERER
AHNERTN)BEE - HRREETAR
Bisit+ (FAMESLEAN) REIRER
BIRAE fEAZFEA) 1201556188H
RUMEEETL - MERKEINZH
ANBIE (HhaiE) &GS EMEE
T REEZLTABEREETHNH
ETEARERERERATDNE—Z
oA RBZESRBEE 2EE
ZETWRABRAEERERERBRAT
BH R MFTA432,000,00082 8% 5 H
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2. Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Ms. Sze Tan
Nei is one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore
she is deemed or taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

3. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Mr. Sze Wai Lun
is one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore he
is deemed and taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

4. Mr. Ang Ming Wah is interested in 64,000 Shares which may be allotted
and issued to him upon full exercise of all options granted to him under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company nor their associates had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which each of them has taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which would be required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to
be kept therein, or which would be required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange as at
31 March 2024.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’/

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2024, the following persons (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company pursuant to provision of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the Shares
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Name of Shareholders Capacity/nature of interest interested in the Company
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Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 432,000,000 72%

MERZERERAR BmEAA 432,000,000 72%
Rich Cheer Development Interest of controlled corporation as the trustee of

Limited the Sze Family Trust (Note) 432,000,000 72%

SIRERBRAE] SELE#ED FARKREELZEA (D) 432,000,000 72%

Note: The entire issued share capital of Sze's Holdings Limited is held by Rich Cheer
Development Limited as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust
is a discretionary trust established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of
the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. By
virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Rich Cheer Development Limited
is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by Sze's
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, the Directors were not
aware that there was any person (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1)
OF THE LISTING RULES

Other than the experiences of the Directors including other directorships
held in the last three years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, which
have been disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” above, the changes in the information of the Directors
since the date of interim report of the Company for the six months ended
30 September 2023 which fall to be disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules are set out below:

B EHREIE13.51B(1)& 2
WE

MREZENER BENBE=ZFREHSZEFN
ERYBIMEABSFHE LHZARATH
FREEZ HMEEHE) BN ELXTEEKS
REERE —ETREN BAATHE2023
F9H308 LB R Z R ERR S HY B H LK -
R EHRAIE13.51B()REAFIRENES
BENZEHEIINT

Name of Directors Details of Changes

Expuy LEER

Madam Ng Sing Mui, an executive Her basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$3,908,016 to
Director and the Chairperson HK$3,986,172 with effect from 1 April 2024.

REERT PITEERIE HEARFH 03,908,016/ 7518 £3,986,17278 75 » B2024F48 1 HiEEE K

Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive Director Her basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$3,130,680 to
HK$3,193,296 with effect from 1 April 2024.
MFAHEXZ T HITEE HEARFEFHH3,130,6808 018 E3,193,29678 77 » H2024F481H L

Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an executive Director His basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$1,172,400 to
HK$1,195,848 with effect from 1 April 2024,
MERLE FITES HEREFHFH,172,40058 7018 £1,195,84878 77 » H2024F4F 1 HEEM

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, each of Sze’s Holdings Limited, Rich
Cheer Development Limited, Madam Ng Sing Mui, Ms. Sze Tan Nei and
Mr. Sze Wai Lun (the “Controlling Shareholders”) have entered into the
deed of non-competition undertakings (the “Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings”) in favour of the Company (for its own and on behalf of
all members of the Group) on 23 February 2017, pursuant to which
each of the Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably and unconditionally,
undertakes and covenants with the Company that during the period that
the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings remains effective, each of
the Controlling Shareholders shall not, and shall procure that none of his/
her/its associates (except any member of the Group), directly or indirectly
(other than through the Group) engage, participate or hold any right or
interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved, whether
as a shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or otherwise (as
the case may be), in any business in competition with or likely to be in
competition with the Group’s existing business activity and any business
activities which may be undertaken by the Group from time to time and/or
which any member of the Group may undertake in Hong Kong from time
to time. Details of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings have been
set out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders
— Deed of Non-competition Undertakings” in the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance with
the terms of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year
ended 31 March 2024. The independent non-executive Directors, having
reviewed the annual declarations and made reasonable enquiry, were
satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms
of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year ended 31
March 2024.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS OR
SUB-CONTRACTORS

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the percentages of (i) revenue
attributable to the Group’s major customers; and (i) cost of services
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers or sub-contractors are set out
below:

TERPRRUEBENSEE

BE2024F3A3HILEFE  ((FEBEXTER
PREERE ; kilcEEEZHEFENOEH
FEEARTS AR B D EE&ZII T

Approximate percentage of

the Group’s
EARERNBLAE I
Revenue Cost of Services
Yz PR %% B 2s
The largest customer BAER 441% -
Five largest customers in aggregate ARBERGE 67.9% -
The largest supplier or sub-contractor RAMEENDEHE - 16.6%
Five largest suppliers or sub-contractors in aggregate ~ A AEFR D EE A - 25.2%

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers, five largest suppliers and sub-contractors noted above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or applicable laws of the Cayman lIslands where the
Company is incorporated.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 March 2024, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors
nor the Controlling Shareholders nor any of their respective close
associates that compete or may compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2024.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group had not entered into
any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions that are
not exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group had entered into
certain transactions with parties regarded as “related parties” under
the applicable accounting standards. All related party transactions
were not regarded as connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules or were exempt from reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has complied with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these
related party transactions are disclosed in notes 14 and 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the public float as required under the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2024 and has continued to maintain such float
as at the date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

There has been no change in auditor in the preceding three years.
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been
audited by BDO Limited, who will retire, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the 2024 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the
2024 AGM to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson and Executive Director

19 June 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

E:F : +852 2218 8288
{EE : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG
LIMITED
KIEZERBERBRAE

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 147, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024 and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2024 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to accounting policies in note 4.8 and note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Service income from provision of environmental hygiene and related
services and airline catering support services is recognised when the
services are rendered. We have identified recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of
the Group and there is an inherent risk over the recognition of revenue by
the management to meet specific targets or expectations.

Our responses:

Our audit procedures to address the revenue recognition included the
followings:

° evaluating the appropriateness of the recognition policy with
reference to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 15;

° inspecting, on sample basis, customer contracts to identify terms
and conditions relating to the provision of services;

° performing substantive analytical procedures to assess whether the
recognised service revenue was in line with the expected level;

° substantiating service income recognised during the year, on
sample basis, by checking details of the service income being
recognised with relevant the underlying documentation, including
service contracts, service records and invoices;

° assessing, on a sample basis, the service income recorded before
and after the financial year end date with the relevant underlying
documentation, including service contracts and service records,
to verify whether the service income had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period; and

° obtaining an understanding on management’s processes and key
control in respect of the revenue recognition.
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Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Refer to accounting policies in note 4.6 (i), note 5.2, note 16 and note
31(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had trade receivables amounted to
HK$121,016,000 after loss allowance of expected credit losses (“ECL”) of
HK$987,000.

The management has engaged an independent professional valuer to
assist them to perform the ECL assessment of trade receivables. The
loss allowance are based on management’s estimate of lifetime ECL
of trade receivables by taking into account the credit loss experience,
ageing of receivables, debtors’ creditworthiness and repayment history
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date, all of which involve a significant degree of
management judgements.

Since the assessment of ECL of trade receivables is a subjective area
which requires the management’s judgement and uses of estimates, and
in view of the significance of the amount to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, we considered this as a key audit matter.

Our responses:

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of trade
receivables included:

° obtaining an understanding on management’s processes in respect
of estimation of ECL;

° evaluating the Group’s policies for estimating the credit loss
allowance with reference to the requirements of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the trade
receivables’ ageing report were classified within the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing individual items in the report with
underlying documentation;

° assessing appropriateness of management’s estimate of credit
loss allowance by examining the information provided by the
management to derive the key parameters and assumptions of
the ECL model adopted by the management, including checking
historical default data, assessing management’s estimated loss
rates and assessing how reasonably management has incorporated
forward-looking information in the ECL allowance;

° reperforming the calculation of the loss allowance as at 31 March

2024 based on the Group’s credit loss allowance policies; and

° assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent external valuer.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WAL EENHR S

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERE AR RAR

s HEERAREKETHERNGE
MELER  LREAMINSHESER
B EERRFEAEHNERARN
EATHERR tMAEERY &
EERBEEENBUERRERE M3
PRRFEERTEES  ALE
EREMBRETRFIZGEGMHR
RPHERIKE - HABKESE
AEREMNER - RMANGEHRDHE
REEZBENRE ARSI E
st/R5E o AR » RERSF B P BEE

B BEREEEIREKLE

. HEBARBRR QERBER K
LRIIBH R BRERAD URES
HERERTATRMEMZZNE
Ig o

e T EEERBEREAEZTIEINYSE
ENERRDRBEENERE  UY
FREMBBRRERER -RMESER
Btz EE BERAT HAEHNRK
Pz B RRAESE

ZMUEBZEZETEBEAR HPaE) |t
TENFEIRE RSB Z AR EREE
R BERMESRHEHEREABEEN
ERIEREREK -

ZATHEZZESRBNA HRAXRME
MEARBUMNERERENR LERE
BREFIAIERSEME AL ERMBL
MR R R EMEE Uk (HER) & HER
BB T HREX BT EN PR A8 B BYBA B 48 7 o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those /¢
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated %z

financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wong Kwok Wai

Practising Certificate Number PO6047

Hong Kong, 19 June 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEENmR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024FE3831HIEFE

2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mk FHET FHET
Revenue e 7 470,707 462,197
Cost of services ARFE A A (404,147) (384,712)
Gross profit EF 66,560 77,485
Other income and gains H A R U as 7 3,235 3,363
General operating expenses — R ERX (56,448) (51,377)
Finance costs BB R A 8 (72) (98)
Profit before income tax PRSI AE R 9 13,275 29,373
Income tax expense FriSiRB = 10 (2,378) (4,628)
Profit for the year attributable to TATEE ANELERZT
owners of the Company 10,897 24,745
Other comprehensive income, item HEAEEHDEEERN
that will not be reclassified H2me
subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of provision for BT ERPRTSEE
long service payments (982) -
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMMEENE > I0RRIE
net of tax (982) -
Total comprehensive income TATBEAEEER
for the year attributable to T
owners of the Company 9,915 24,745
Earnings per share SREF 13
- Basic —H&K HK1.8 cents 7l HK4.1 cents 7Ll
- Diluted —#8 HK1.8 cents 7&fll  HKA.1 cents &1l

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERERBRAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBIRRR

As at 31 March 2024 22024438 31H

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 June

2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ng Sing Mui
BEENE
Director

EF

Nogqs
5T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER
Non-current assets EREMEE
Property, plant and equipment EN G 14 59,053 32,730
Prepayments FAMITRIA 17 392 2,845
Deferred tax assets IRIEFIEE E 23 133 -
59,578 35,575
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =78 15 555 76
Trade receivables B2 U IE 16 121,016 80,884
Prepayments, deposits and FEAIE - E
other receivables HahpE hia 17 6,167 4,521
Tax recoverable AU [EliRIE 1,153 -
Cash and cash equivalents e RIRSEEY 18 93,559 153,957
222,450 239,438
Current liabilities wREBAaE
Trade payables E Z R ARUA 19 18,680 14,653
Accruals, deposits and other payables EsTER s M
HAEsRIa 19 34,761 32,463
Lease liabilities HE8E 20 507 86
Bank borrowings SRITIE™ 21 938 2,506
Tax payable FE{IiRIE - 2,080
54,886 51,788
Net current assets REEEFHE 167,564 187,650
Total assets less current liabilities WEERREER 227,142 223,225
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 20 950 -
Provision for long service payments EHRBTER 22 13,477 10,008
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 23 1,415 1,932
15,842 11,940
Net assets FEE 211,300 211,285
EQUITY m
Share capital & 7 24 6,000 6,000
Reserves B 25 205,300 205,285
Total equity g ke 211,300 211,285
The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 147 were SF74BEF14TERHZGEHFHREER

2024 F6H19REEF o ERIBET &
WHFHNESFAREE

Sze Tan Nei
ik g
Director

EF

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
20244EFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o A 3 L 42u
e EER
For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

Share
Share Share  Merger option Retained
capital premium* reserve* reserve*  profits* Total
fERtE
a4 RRDiEET SHE#E" fEE REEN “aEt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$S000 HK$ 000
FHEx FTHExT FE T FTET FET FTET
At 1 April 2022 14202254818 6,000 48,177 20,917 30 120,254 195,378
Final dividend approved and Bt /& & B4k HE
paid (note 12) BB (ysE12) - - - - (8838 (8,838
Profit for the year and total S FRGEH REREE
comprehensive income for Uit 48%8
the year - - - - 24,745 24,745
Share options lapsed [EESsE - - - (4) 4 -
At 31 March 2023 and 142023F3831H K&
1 April 2023 2023%F4H1H 6,000 48,177 20,917 26 136,165 211,285
Final dividend approved and B #L/# K& EAJREA
paid (note 12) g (FsE12) - - - - (9,900) (9,900
Profit for the year FREA] - - - - 10,897 10,897
Other comprehensive income Bt B 7 - - - - (982) (982)
Total comprehensive income 4 P92 & W & 48 28
for the year - - - - 9,915 9,915
At 31 March 2024 142024538 31H 6,000 48,177 20,917 26 136,180 211,300

*

consolidated statement of financial position.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERE AR RAR

These reserve balances comprised the reserve account as set out in the

BHo

* ZERBREBOUEREVBRARARERS



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FARERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RETFEHIRENE
Profit before income tax FRPTSIR AT & F] 13,275 29,373
Adjustments for: HEE
Interest income ) B U A (2,615) (357)
Interest expenses FMERE 72 98
Write off of property, plant and equipment i) % Bk = K 25 45 7 48
Depreciation TE 6,344 5,717
Provision for impairment loss on B S REWEIE R EEEEE B
trade receivables, net 760 74
Operating profit before EEESEEBAIKE N
working capital changes 17,843 34,953
(Increase)/decrease in inventories EFE dgm R (479) 3
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B S WA g R (40,892) 23,061
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, BRI & R EMEWRIE
deposits and other receivables agm R (1,461) 598
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B S EIEEM, CRiL) 4,027 (1,678)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, FESTER L& R EMBENRIE
deposits and other payables @0, el 908 (673)
Increase/(decrease) in provision for RERBEHBEHLM,
long service payments 2,487 (938)
Cash (used in)/generated from &% (FrA) /Friisi$
operations (17,567) 55,426
Interest paid BEAFHE (59) (83)
Income tax paid [=ANIEST (6,261) 4,611)
Net cash (used in)/generated from x5 E (FrA) PSR E 34
operating activities (23,887) 50,732
Cash flows from investing activities KEFHRERE
Interest received BUFH 2 2,430 357
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB Y% = K& (27,097) (711)
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEYE BMERREBZENIIE
plant and equipment (147) (2,845)
Net cash used in investing activities KREEEFTARE 3 (24,814) (3,199)
Cash flows from financing activities FEEEIRENE
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (1,568) (1,528)
Payment of principal portion of SNHAEEENAEI D
lease liabilities (216) (408)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities 3z 40 & & EMF] B35 (13) (15)
Dividend paid BETRE (9,900) (8,838)
Net cash used in financing activities REEEFTRREFEE (11,697) (10,789)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MAREERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH5T FHET
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERREEEY
cash equivalents GRiL) /e nni3%EE (60,398) 36,744
Cash and cash equivalents FNRERFEEEY
at beginning of the year 153,957 117,213
Cash and cash equivalents FRRERFEEEY
at end of the year 93,559 153,957
Analysis of balances of cash and HERREEEMBGROWN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances IRE KIRTT4SER 35,107 83,672
Short-term bank deposits with original FREFAH/ DR =@ B NiE IR TER
maturity of less than three months 58,452 70,285
93,559 153,957

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

KIEIZERREBRIRAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 31 May 2016. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal place of business is
Unit 1926, 19/F., Global Plaza, 1 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company, collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 34.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Sze’s Holdings
Limited (“Sze’s Holdings”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”") and the entire issued share capital of Sze’s
Holdings is held by Rich Cheer Development Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, as the trustee of a family trust (the
“Sze Family Trust”). The Sze Family Trust is a discretionary trust
established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of the Sze
Family Trust included, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan
Nei. Rich Cheer Development Limited is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 New standards, interpretations and

amendments adopted from 1 April 2023

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new and amendments to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are
effective for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning on 1 April 2023.

Insurance Contracts and the
related amendments
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting Estimates

HKAS 8
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets and
HKAS 12 Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction

International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Except as discussed below, the adoption of new and
amendments to HKFRSs has no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The amendments aim to make accounting policy disclosures
more informative by replacing the requirement to disclose
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. The amendments also provide guidance
under what circumstance, the accounting policy information
is likely to be considered material and therefore requiring
disclosure.

These amendments have no effect on the measurement
or presentation of any items in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group but affect the disclosure of
accounting policies of the Group.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024%3831HIEEE

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. ZEHHERES w

(Continued)

2.2 s#KIE AR TS

2.2 New guidance on accounting for the

mandatory provident fund - long service
payment offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong issued by HKICPA

In June 2022, Employment and Retirement Schemes
Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (“the Amendment Ordinance”) was enacted. The
Amendment Ordinance abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’ mandatory contributions
under the mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme to offset
severance payment (“SP”) and long service payment (“‘LSP”)
(“the Abolition”). The Abolition is also applicable to the defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme which is registered
under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the
“ORSO Scheme”). Subsequently, the Government of HKSAR
announced that the Abolition will take effect on 1 May 2025
(“the Transition Date”).

The following key changes will take effect since the Transition
Date:

- Accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory
MPF contributions cannot be used to offset the LSP/SP
in respect of the employment period after the Transition
Date.

- The pre-transition LSP/SP is calculated using the last
month’s salary immediately preceding the Transition
Date, instead of using the last month’s salary of
employment termination date.

- Employers cannot use the “carved-out benefits”
from the vested benefits of employers’ occupational
retirement schemes (“ORS”) contributions to offset
employees’ SP/LSP.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 New guidance on accounting for the

mandatory provident fund - long service
payment offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong issued by HKICPA (Continued)

Due to the complexities of the accounting for the offsetting
of accrued benefits derived from an employer’s mandatory
MPF and ORS contributions and its LSP obligation and the
accounting for the offsetting mechanism could become
material in light of the Abolition, the HKICPA published
“Accounting implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” (“the Guidance”) in
July 2023 to provide guidance to account for the offsetting
mechanism and the Abolition. The HKICPA concluded that
there are two acceptable accounting approaches for the
offsetting mechanism, being:

- Approach 1: Account for the amount expected to be
offset as a deemed employee contribution towards that
employee’s LSP benefits in terms of HKAS 19.93(a)

= Approach 2: Account for the employer MPF
contributions and the offsetting mechanism as a
funding mechanism for the LSP obligation

Application of the Guidance had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2023. For the year ended 31 March 2024,
based on management’s assessment, provision for long
service payments of HK$13,477,000 was provided as at 31
March 2024. Further details about the provision is set out in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

2.3 New standards, interpretations and

amendments that have been issued but

are not yet effective

The following amendments to HKFRSs, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these

changes on the date they become effective.
Amendments to HKAS 1
“2020 Amendments”)’

Amendments to HKAS 1
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)!

HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial

(Revised)

Demand Clause!

Amendments to

HKFRS 16 easeback

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 21

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 !

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the

Non-current Liabilities with

Statements - Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on

Lease Liability in a Sale and

Supplier Finance Arrangements’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

B BREH @

2.3 BlEMERKRERZHE
A 2R RAERT

THEBMBREERZETE
EmEBHAREMBERERERRE
ERM-AEBRBNZFTER
ENEBRBILEFEREEH -

EA IR BasoEs
BB RETIERE
(F2020%
CHENDR
EARIHER REELEN
BB FERFEE
(F2022%
CHENDR
EBREFEST HBERERMNE
L) T —fER A
HAEREKE
BIEXZEH
BRzoE
EAMBHRE E®ENMNEE
#A|F165Er A
CH|
EA IR HEEHE
FIRRER 2
R 753k &5 22 8)
BIIRZ BT
ERATHER BRI R4
F215R BT
ERAMBHRE REHHEHKE
ZRIE105 R ABHEEDR
SRR EENEE
P28 BT HENHES

H2024F1B1HS 2 BHAKAE

ERE A
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025 2 B2025F1B1HR 2 B BENE
ERE A
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be ® BEFETHBRIZERENEERH
determined B4

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
amendments to HKFRSs will not result in significant impact
on amounts reported in the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000”) except otherwise indicated.

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.2

4.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: (i) power over the
investee, (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and (i) the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024F3831HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on the following property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line basis to allocate their
costs less their residual value over their estimated useful lives.
The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
The useful lives are as follows:

Over the shorter of
unexpired term of lease
or 50 years

Over the shorter of the
related lease term or 5

Leasehold land and buildings
(note 4.4)

Leasehold improvement

years
Office furniture and equipment 15-25%
Machinery and equipment 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

Other properties leased for own use Over the lease term

(note 4.4)

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Leases

Accounting as a lessee

All leases are capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
except for short-term leases. The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases
for which at the commencement date have a lease term of
12 months or less and do not contain purchase option. The
lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The Group measures the right-of-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

Cost of the right-of-use asset would comprise: (i) the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liability (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease liability); (ii)
any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial direct
costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

4.

FEER @

4.4 1HE @

4.5

FHREEE @
FRAREERAREIE ((AEa
BEzHrtE2B (B TXEH
AEaBARNG B ;)R
MIEAPRZAEE 2 EAAEE
THRRERRZEAEEERSE ;
(iiyEABANEEZEADEEZRL
R 5 Re(iv)EA AR DR K 7 B
R EEERERAKREERTE
AR EE 2 st A A o

HERR

HEaRNZNEEMRKBA R
R ZHENFRZRERET -
MR EZEE  AEEN
RACRABEERSZA KKK -
HzZMNERELIEZETE BIAE
EERAAREAZEEERX

RHEGBHEE AEEEUTA
NtEREEE ()EMREEMN
FMEEESERN S ;)R ERE
BEURMBEHZEENR ; &
(IEMtEREBEURMREME
M ERAERE AR EE
SEEEEEEMRC

=78
FEENRER AR EBER
AT EIRFEMEPHNRES
B oM ABIEMBRBRA K
BEEEERERBMBERER
AR RAEENEMAA o 5
RIZMEF AT E o A &#IRF
EIEHEEFBRETINMEERS
RETIHE VBT A

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
20244EFER

37



383

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024F3831HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments

i)

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item subsequently measured
at amortised cost, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

Debt instruments that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECL based on lifetime ECL. For trade
receivables which ECL are measured on collective
basis, the Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

4. ZTEHEE @

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For other financial assets at amortised cost, ECL are
based on lifetime ECL except when there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the allowance will be based
on the 12 months ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information
analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 90
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 1 year past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

The Group has rebutted the presumptions that credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition
when financial assets are more than 30 days past due
and that financial assets are in default when they are
more than 90 days past due based on the settlement
pattern of the customers.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.

46 =FETH @

(ii)

TREERMERBE®

KRB p A st 2R HE Ath
THMEEMS > BHREEEH
BLEREHAREES
B o MM E B ERE B )b
S0 LA I 8 K R IR A0 0 FE UL
BT L12(8 B B
EEBERER-

EECEREEZEERR
TR BYIRERE ARG
e pfE st R E e E
R AEEZEEERRE
AT HBZ A HE DR
AESZEEKRIEER-
I FEIREAE R 2 BEL
EREMEEFLFHES
REMZER RO BF
AIEMEE R -

W R EEBAA0R MU L
FEREBRREMEENEE
JR\ B R E 1 A0 o

ETIBERT AEERA
ETMEEBEN (()ERA
ARAEEREBEBBRE
HEVEIRIEIR (WFA) £17
FNERTHAAERRAZ
NEEEGR; HREmME
ERf—FEN L ERER
BEAEKASEERER—
BEERENENZEELS
o BB 1ER A o

REEPHNGEERN &&E
EEERHTMEEAH
30R UL BIEERKRE
YR HESD LAZR B AR 18 N 2
R RidERE ER AR
ML RIBENZIHETE -

BESRIANME  HiE
ERBBREL MG
BRISHREERRE BH
FEEMRET G /T
BRBEXENEEEREE

(G0 A R K M5 & R B 5T
) ET M

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
20244EFER

39



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024F3831HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

° the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

o it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are past due for a number of years. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued)
(iii) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
payables, accruals, deposits and other payables and
bank borrowings are initially measured at fair value,
net of directly attributable costs incurred. They are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense
is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

(iv) Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

(v) Derecognition
The Group generally derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expires.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represented cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024F3831HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Revenue and other income

Environmental hygiene and related services
Environmental hygiene services and related services include
public area and office cleaning, waste disposal as well
as specialised services such as external curtain wall and
window cleaning, marble floor maintenance and restoration
and pest management services. In most instance, promised
services in a contract represent a series of distinct services
that are substantially the same with the same pattern of
transfer to the customer and are accounted for as a single
performance obligation. However, where there are contracts
with more than one service that are capable of being distinct
and are distinct within the context of the contract, and
those promised services are not substantially the same,
those services are accounted for as separate performance
obligations, and revenue is allocated to each of the
performance obligations based on relative stand-alone selling
prices.

Normally the Group charges customers on a monthly rate
basis and they are required to settle the service fee monthly
in arrears. In general, the Group grants credit period to its
customers ranges from O days to 60 days from the date of
billing. The Group has applied the practical expedient not
to recognise any financing element as the period between
the Group’s performance and payment for that performance
is one year or less. Revenue from environmental hygiene
services and related services is recognised over time because
the customer simultaneously received and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group. The Group has also applied
the practical expedient of recognising revenue in the amount
to which the entity has a right to invoice as entity’s right to
consideration from a customer corresponds directly with the
value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed
to date.

Where the service contracts give customers the right to
deduct service fees payable if third party service providers
are engaged to rectify defects in the Group’s services or
other matters not to the client’s satisfaction, execution of
outstanding works or if there is delay in completion without
a valid and justifiable reason, service fees may be reduced.
The Group had not experienced any cases that service fees
were materially reduced by customers for the aforesaid
reasons during the current and prior years and it is highly
probable that there will not be a future reversal in the amount
of revenue recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Revenue and other income (Continued)

Airline catering support services

For the provision of airline catering support services, the
Group are responsible for the handling of food and non-
food items, including the plating of meals, checking and tray-
setting food and non-food items onto meal tray and inserting
completed meal trays into meal carts. In most instance,
promised services in a contract represent a series of distinct
services that are substantially the same with the same pattern
of transfer to the customer and are accounted for as a single
performance obligation.

Revenue from airline catering support services is
recognised over time because another entity would not
need to substantially re-perform the work that the entity
has completed to date if that other entity were to fulfil the
remaining performance obligation to the customer. The
Group has a right to invoice with reference to its services
provided to the customer at a predetermined rate as stated
in the contract. The Group usually issues invoices to its
customers on a monthly basis with no credit period granted.
The Group’s billings to its customers are invoiced at amounts
that correspond with the value of the Group’s performance
completed to date based on the pre-determined rates as
stated in the service contracts and the Group applies the
practical expedient to simplify disclosure regarding remaining
performance obligations. The Group has applied the practical
expedient not to recognise any financing element as the
period between entity’s performance and payment for that
performance is one year or less.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024F3831HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax. Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty
related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences. Except for initial recognition of assets and
liabilities that are not part of the business combination which
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits and does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised, provided that the deductible temporary differences
are not arises from initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction other than in a business combination that
affects neither taxable profit nor the accounting profit and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of reporting period, and reflects any uncertainty related to
income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income tax levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.10 Employee benefits

i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

Long service payments

LSP under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
(“the Ordinance”) is categorised as a defined benefit
plan. Employees qualified under the Ordinance are
entitled to LSP in certain circumstances specified in
the Ordinance. There are no legal funding requirements
on employers and the Group does not have any
arrangement in place to settle its payment obligation in
the future.

The Group’s obligation to LSP is measured at:

= Gross LSP obligation which is estimated using
the projected unit credit method discounted
to its present value using yields of government
bond denominated in Hong Kong Dollar that
have maturity dates approximating to the terms
of the liabilites and are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars which is the currency of the LSP
obligations; less

= Negative service costs. Under the Ordinance,
the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
and the MFP Schemes Ordinance, the Group
can offset the accrued benefits derived from the
Group’s ORS and MPF contributions against
the Group’s LSP obligations. The Group regards
these ORS and MPF contributions are deemed
contributions by employees towards the LSP
benefits. The nature is negative service costs.
These deemed contributions are estimated by
applying an expected investment return rate
on the ORS and MPF contributions and then
attributed to periods of service using the same
attribution method for gross LSP obligation.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

410 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Long service payments (Continued)
Service costs are recognised in profit or loss, and
include current and past service costs (including result
from a plan amendment).

Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss, and
is calculated by applying the discount rate used to
measure the LSP obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the balance of the LSP obligation,
considering the effects of benefit payments during the
period.

Remeasurements of the LSP obligation, including
actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

4.11 Impairment loss of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.12 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, which will probably result in an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits that can
be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

4.13 Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

The fair value of services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity under the
heading of share option reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024F3831HIEFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ
from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year is set out below.

5.1 Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 4.3.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. E K E:H{hst&BRE @
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

5.2

5.3

5.4

Impairment of trade receivables

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 for
the financial assets measured at amortised cost requires
judgement when determining impairment losses.

The Group’s loss allowances are based on management’s
estimate of the lifetime ECL, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of receivables,
debtors’ creditworthiness and repayment history and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date. Changes in
these estimates could have a significant impact on the loss
allowance to be recognised or reversed in future years.

Provision for long service payments

The provision of the long service payment depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis
using a number of assumptions. Any changes in these
assumptions will impact the carrying amount of provision.

Details of key assumptions are disclosed in note 22.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognised
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will affect the current
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.
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5.4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024F3831HIEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

In a manner consistent with the information reported to the
executive directors of the Company, who are the chief operating
decision makers for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of performance of the operating segments, the Group
has presented the following two reportable segments:

(1)  Environmental hygiene and related services
(2)  Airline catering support services

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” (“HKFRS 8”) are
the same as those used in its consolidated financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs. For the purpose of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other than tax
recoverable and cash and cash equivalents.

= all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
bank borrowings and tax payable.

- all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments other
than directors’ emoluments, finance costs related to bank
borrowings, income tax expense and certain other income
and expenses incurred by the head office.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS ER R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER @
For the year ended 31 March 2024 HF2024F3H31HILLFEE
Environmental Airline
hygiene catering
and related support
services services Total
RIBFER LIRS 23
1B RA AR TS S RIRTS st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET F#ET FET
Revenue Uy &
Sales to external customers BN EFIHE 465,440 5,267 470,707
Segment results DEBEE 24,529 564 25,093
Directors’ emoluments ERE (10,914)
Finance costs FE A A (59)
Unallocated corporate income KD BCEZEWA KRS
and expenses, net FER (845)
Profit before income tax FRETISF AR A 13,275
Income tax expense gz (2,378)
Profit for the year FRREA 10,897
Segment assets DEEE 185,661 1,655 187,316
Tax recoverable AIUR el IE 1,153
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEEY 93,559
Total assets HEE 282,028
Segment liabilities NEEE 69,516 274 69,790
Bank borrowings IRITIER 938
Total liabilities B1E4E%E 70,728

Other segment information ~ Efth 9> 2B & ¥}
Depreciation e (6,344) - (6,344)
Additions to non-current assets FER B0 E LN 32,674 = 32,674
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. FEEN @
For the year ended 31 March 2023 B E2023F3H31HILELEFEE
Environmental Airline
hygiene catering
and related support
services services Total
RIEBER MZEEER
islealivei SRR #Est
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
TFET FET TFAET
Revenue W
Sales to external customers ~ HINEEEFIHE 462,197 - 462,197
Segment results DEEE 41,614 - 41,614
Directors’ emoluments EEME (11,295)
Finance costs EE={N (83)
Unallocated corporate income KD BCEZEWA KR
and expenses, net FER (863)
Profit before income tax FRPT1S IR A& F] 29,373
Income tax expense g (4,628)
Profit for the year FEREH 24,745
Segment assets NEEE 121,056 - 121,056
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBEEFEY 153,957
Total assets BEE 275,013
Segment liabilities SaR=is=N-1 59,142 - 59,142
Bank borrowings IRITEN 2,506
Tax payable EIRIE 2,080
Total liabilities 8RR 63,728

Other segment information ~ Efth 9> 2B & ¥}
Depreciation e (5,717) - (5,717)
Additions to non-current assets 3E7 BN E A& 1N 711 - 711

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
place of the Group’s operation is in Hong Kong. For the purpose
of segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8, Hong Kong
is regarded as the Group’s place of domicile. All the Group’s non-
current assets are attributable to Hong Kong for the years ended 31
March 2024 and 2023, being the single geographical region.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided. All the Group’s revenue from
external customers is sourced from Hong Kong.

Revenue from customers which individually contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue, are set out as follows:

6. DEHEM @

RABABREERAT  AEBFER
EME NN EB MIBESEBM B R
EHERESFETHBERIKREMS
ERWEATEBMMTEH - AEBER
2024 K 2023FE3831HIEFEEBFR
BIERBEEHRKEE—HEETE-

& P i 3B 1 B DUPR 1R (AR 75 4t 1k 23 4R
o AEERBINBE P BIFTA W
REEHB-

BRI AERKRTmI0%FI U LHNE R
W EHmT

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FABT

Customer A (note 1) ZHRA (ffsE1) 207,718 191,208

Customer B (note 1) ZHB (fisE1) 66,760 62,704
Note: f % :

(1) They are customers for environmental hygiene and related services for the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

(1) HAHZE2024F %2023F3831HIEF
ENREFEREFEARBHNES
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A 4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS

7. W Re E fth U A B U =8

(@) The Group’s revenue recognised within the scope of HKFRS (@ HTEENREBEMBHRESERFES
15 are as follows: FREEINER 2 WRWT
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHEx
Revenue: e -
Environmental hygiene and RIS A RAERR
related services 465,440 462,197
Airline catering support services =B MR IER 5,267 -
470,707 462,197
For the year ended 31 March 2024, revenue of B E2024F3H31HIEEFEE %
HK$470,707,000 (2023: HK$462,197,000) was recognised B R ER B 2B W 224 70,707,00078 7T
over time. (20234 : 462,197,000/ 7T) ©
(b) As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the aggregated amount of (b) FH2024%F K2023%F3831H 9

the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts as follows:

EREAERRBEGHNETR N E
NEENXZBEENT !

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Expected to be recognised within FTEEAR — ST
one year 371,138 304,000
Expected to be recognised after TEHRR —F B R
one year 459,594 72,974
830,732 376,974

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS ER R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (Continued)

(c) The Group’s other income and gains recognised during the
year are as follows:

Wz e E At IR A B Uk

FEBERFERREBHEMBEA K
WeaEdn s :

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Other income and gains: H A R s

Bank interest income RITHIEWA 2,615 357
Sales of scrap materials BERIEHE 510 519
Government subsidies (note) BT e (M) - 2,487
Others Hth 110 -
3,235 3,363

Note: B5E :

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the amounts represented the
subsidies of HK$2,487,000 obtained from the Employment Support
Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, which was provided by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

The Group does not have other unfulfiled obligations relating to these
subsidies.

8. FINANCE COSTS

B E20283F3831HIEFE 2515
RIFBEBRITHEBITIRENEE
MEEEE TR ESZESHHA
2,487,000 7T °

AEBBEEZEHAMNEMEKRE
&S

=27

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Interest on bank borrowings IRITEHFIE 59 83
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBHE 13 15
72 98
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A 4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. FRFEREMAIE
Profit before income tax for the year has been arrived at after FRFRPTEMRANRF T &N -
charging:
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEMEN &
— audit services —BEHIRTS 600 600
— non-audit services —IEBE RS 350 380
950 980
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses A BFEE K 13,216 12,834
Depreciation e 6,344 5,717
Write off of property, plant and equipment ¥ 2 ~ Bk = & 58 = 55 7 48
Provision for impairment loss on B2 ENFIE R ER R E
trade receivables, net HRE 760 74
Short-term lease expenses RHAEER X 359 420
Employee costs (including directors’ BEMK (BIEEEMS)
remuneration):
— Wages, salaries and allowances —TE& #HeRMmhh 277,444 272,849
- Long service payments (note 22) —RHR%ES (:k22) 3,855 139
— Retirement scheme contributions —BIREH B 10,548 10,764
291,847 283,752

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in accordance with two-
tiered profits tax rate regime. The first HK$2,000,000 of assessable
profits of a qualifying entity of the Group is taxed at 8.25% and
the assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 are taxed at 16.5%
for both years. The assessable profit of other subsidiaries in Hong

Kong are taxed at 16.5%.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

10. FRIS B2

BEEMNRF

2B % RS0 /4R 5 5T R B
B MEEE ~AEBEEKRERY
H2,000,00078 7o FER 10 i 7/4%8.25%
ZMEHHIRIE > MiB182,000,000548
TCZFERB B FIR16.5% 2 70 RN

He Hth &8 2 I B AR 2 BRI
F#16.5% 2 I BARIRIE

2024 2023

20245 20234
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FABT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVERIRIBE— B EFER 2,902 5,089

Current tax — under/(over)-provision in AEEfRIE—BEEEREETE,
prior years (EBEa# ) 126 (39)
Deferred taxation (note 23) IEIEFRIE (FI5E23) (650) (422)
2,378 4,628

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit

at applicable tax rate:

PRISMAXERBERAREAEN G
AR

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Profit before income tax BRPRS R AT ) 13,275 29,373
Tax at applicable tax rates iE AR EHR 2,025 4,681

Tax effect of non-taxable income BERRIA E’Jﬁﬁ%%% (431) (653)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses Ao RN E T E 336 657

Tax effect of temporary differences RO EENREEE

not recognised (111) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERRIBEBIENRB 442 -

Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEEERERR (BEEE) 126 (39)

Tax concession RIEE R ©) (18)
Income tax expense T8~ 2,378 4,628
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MM1.EBTRSRETEEME
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) EEME

(a) Directors’ remuneration

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and other Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonus contributions Total
e -mk
ik Hithig# BIBTEAL BIREBIHR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Year ended 31 March 2024 HZE2024F3A31B L EE
Executive directors: HiTES:
Madam Ng Sing Mui S@EiELT - 3,908 - 195 4,103
Ms. Sze Tan Nei HREL T - 3,131 - 157 3,288
Mr. Ang Ming Wah ABRELE = 1,613 = = 1,613
Mr. Sze Wai Lun HEEfRiE - 1,172 - 18 1,190
Independent non-executive BUERTES .
directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RIERESE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chung Koon Yan #BIERLE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Chun Sing BIRBLE 240 - - - 240
Total &5t 720 9,824 - 370 10,914
Year ended 31 March 2023 HE2023F3ANALEE
Executive directors: HiTES:
Madam Ng Sing Mui SEEYT - 3,758 307 188 4,253
Ms. Sze Tan Nei ML T - 3,010 246 151 3,407
Mr. Ang Ming Wah HEREL L - 1,551 127 - 1,678
Mr. Sze Wai Lun M fmiE - 1,127 92 18 1,237
Independent non-executive BIERTES .
directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RIERESE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chung Koon Yan ERRALE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Chun Sing BIRBLE 240 - - - 240
Total st 720 9,446 772 357 11,295

HE2024FE3831HILEFEE ]
EERERETAME (2023£F :

) o

No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended
31 March 2024 (2023: nil).

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2023: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in note 11(a) above. The
emoluments of the remaining one (2023: one) individual was
as follows:

M.EFEREREEEME @

(b) AfimRE#HAL

FrEBRLURSMEATH O1
(2023%F : O1) BEABES>
HENE 8 EXHaE11(a) o 8R T
—fiL (20234 : —1u) A&
LI

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET TFHET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ~ ¥7< ~ 8 Bh K EL &7 1,029 774
Discretionary bonus FIBTIEAT - 63
Retirement scheme contributions BRIREHEIHRR 11 18
1,040 855

The remuneration paid to the above non-director highest paid
individual was within the following emolument band:

ENFLEXFEERSHALY
HMAR T M8 E :

2024 2023
20244 20234
Number of Number of
individual individual

A N

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7TE
1,500,000/ 7T

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company or any of the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

REE20245F K% 2023F3H31H
FEFE AREBEEREKATN
EERANUERSHFATHEM—
LT EBN > EAE M AZMA
AREBRNEBREABERME

&
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MNEZREREEEMNE @
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(c) Senior management’s emoluments (c) SHREEEME
The remuneration paid to the senior management of the FRENFAEERSHRERE
Group (other than the directors as disclosed in note 11(a) (EXXHMI5E11(a) Pl 88 BV = E Bk
above) for the year fell within the following emolument band: A METBNA TR T IS EE -
2024 2023
20244 20234
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
N A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 1,000,000 7T 2 2
12. DIVIDENDS 12. BB
(@ Dividends attributable to the year: (@ TFEEMLKS:
2024 2023
20245 20235
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Final dividend proposed of EREREERRERE
HK 0.727 cents (2023: HK1.650 cents) 0.727781ll (20234 :
per ordinary share 1.6507811l) 4,362 9,900
The final dividend proposed after the reporting date for REE2024F3H31HIEFEEZ
the year ended 31 March 2024 is subject to shareholders’ REHDHEREFRBREBTR
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting and has RREERRBEFAE CHIER
not been recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2024. FHEEE > B HER 202453831

AEREmAaRE

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS ER R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

12. DIVIDENDS (continued) 12. I B @)
() Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved b) BEFBREEEMLERE  RAE
and paid during the year: FEHE A RORAY

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Final dividend approved and paid in ThIB B B EHE M BT BY
respect of the previous financial year KHKE

- HK1.650 cents (2023: HK1.473 — SR EER1.650% W
cents) per ordinary share (20234 : 1.473%1) 9,900 8,838
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. SRR & F
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on BREARBEERATLREUTER
the following information: 8
2024 2023
20245 2023%
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Earnings el
Profit attributable to owners of the Company Z<A &) # 5 A &L & 10,897 24,745

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

13. EIREF @)

2023
20234
000
Th
Number of shares & B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares %t 51 5 & J& & 2 & 7 A9 % 18 1%
for the purpose of basic earnings per share N ¥9EL 600,000 600,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: i BT ZiBR 2L :
— Share options — g - -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5t 51 & S A 5 R A 1 Z B /G
for the purpose of diluted earnings per MR
share 600,000 600,000

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2024 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$10,897,000 (2023: HK$24,745,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
600,000,000 (2023: 600,000,000) in issue during the year ended
31 March 2024.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31 March 2024 and 2023 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s share options because the exercise price of those
share options was higher than the average market price for ordinary
shares during the year.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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B E2024F3R31HIEEENER
BEABATBREBEALNBDER ABK
FREF]10,897,000% 75 (20234
24,745,000 70) KB E202443H31
HEFEEZETEERNMETSH
600,000,0008% (20234 : 600,000,000
iR st&E o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

14. Y E -BERRE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Other
Leasehold Office Machinery properties
Leasehold land and  furniture and and Motor leased for
improvement buildings equipment equipment vehicles own use Total
HELHE  WARER BER Hitr
HEEE 1#F & B RE BREEME Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER FER FiER FiER FHER
Cost 3%
At 1 April 2022 12022545 1H 2,402 34,572 5,441 11,026 20,050 809 74,300
Additions HE - - - 605 106 - Akl
Written off 6| - - - (1,133) (562) - (1,695)
At 31 March 2023 and R2023%3A31H &

1 April 2023 2023%481H 2,402 34,572 5,441 10,498 19,594 809 73,316
Additions HE 921 21172 324 2,670 - 1,687 32,674
Written off b6z (386) - (87) (529) - (809) (1,811)
At 31 March 2024 1202453H318 2,937 61,744 5,678 12,639 19,594 1,587 104,179
Accumulated depreciation R E
At 1 April 2022 12022445 1H 2,089 9,387 2,522 9,406 12,842 270 36,516
Provided for the year FREE 200 997 634 854 2,627 405 5,717
Written back on written off A 8 B [0 - - - (1,001) (556) - (1,647)
At 31 March 2023 and R2023%3A31H &

1 April 2023 2023%451H 2,289 10,384 3,156 9,169 14,913 675 40,586
Provided for the year FREE 186 1,921 646 802 2,522 267 6,344
Written back on written off ~ FHifi#H B B2 [0 (386) - (85) (524) - (809) (1,804)
At 31 March 2024 1202453H318 2,089 12,305 3,717 9,447 17,435 133 45,126
Net book value BREFE
At 31 March 2024 12024538310 848 49,439 1,961 3,192 2,159 1,454 59,053
At 31 March 2023 120235 3831H 113 24,188 2,285 1,329 4,681 134 32,730
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the leasehold land and buildings with net
carrying amount of HK$23,191,000 (2023: HK$24,188,000) are pledged
as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings and banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 21).

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there was addition to other
properties leased for own use of HK$1,587,000 (2023: nil). The additions
are non-cash transaction. It represents the lease the Group entered
with a company in which Madam Ng Sing Mui is the director of this
company. As Madam Ng Sing Mui has control over the Company and is
the chairperson and executive director of the Company, this transaction
is therefore a related party transaction. During the year ended 31
March 2024, depreciation charge of right-of-use assets of HK$133,000
(20283: nil) and interest on lease liabilites of HK$12,000 (2023: nil) were
recognised in profit or loss in relation to such lease. As at 31 March 2024,
the carrying amount of the respective other properties leased for own use,
lease liabilities and deposits are HK$1,454,000 (2023: nil), HK$1,457,000
(2023: nil) and HK$142,000 (2023: nil) respectively.

15. INVENTORIES

14. Y% -BEKRHKE @

Consumables, at cost

HFEm (ZALE)

R2024F K2023%F3831H » lREAFE
723,191,000 7T (20234 : 24,188,000
B zHET M REBFEIRIFEAR
EERITERAAEBMEFRBTREZ
BR (fFzE21) ©

HE2024FE3831HILEEE  HithB A
THEY AR E,587,00058 75 (20234 :
T) cZAEAFRERFZ HIEXER
H—-HREEZTEAEENATTIL
MEE AHRREELTEFEAQTA
BENTEBRITES BALERS
BEAERR S B E2024F3H31H 1k
FE > FRAEEEITEEAR133,0008 7T
(2023%F | &) REESEHN E12,000
BT (2023F | &) MAABHZMEE
B85 0 1R2024F3831H > HtE A7
EYEx-HEEERESZENREE
D BI%A1,454,00078 78 (2023%F : &) ~
1,457,000 75 (20234 : &) K%142,000
BT (20234 1 T) o

(=

15. &

2024
20244

2023
20234
HK$’000
FHET

HK$’000
FET

555 76

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

16. B 5 B FRIH

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B S EWEIE ) bR E A 121,016 80,884

Trade receivables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both
years.

The credit terms of trade receivables are ranged from 0 to 60 days
(2023: 0 to 60 days) from the date of billing. Further details on the
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade receivables
are set out in note 31(b).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowance as of the end of the reporting period is as

RWEEE > 85 BUIRIES U AT
B

BEEWFENEEHERZEHEE
N FORZEBOK (20234 : 0K EB0K) ©
BEAEREERENRE S EWAIE
FTELEEERRZE—FHBHNK
5£31(b) °

BERSHR BERNEZAHARIAGE
BEFENE S BRFRRE DT -

follows:
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$'000 HK$’000
F#ET FAET
Within one month —EAR 43,866 30,582
One to three months —EZ=1EH 65,446 41,719
More than three months —EBR ML 11,704 8,583
121,016 80,884
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 17. 78

IRIA - 2R AME

RECEIVABLES A +H
2023
20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Non-current: JETRS -
Prepayments AT FRIB 392 2,845
Current: e
Prepayments for consumables JEFEmV TR RIE - 128
Other prepayments HAMMFEN A 5,522 3,919
Deposits b 644 408
Other receivables HEW=IE 1 66
6,167 4,521
18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. RERIINEEEW
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAET
Cash and bank balances B RIRTT4EER 35,107 83,672
Short-term bank deposits with original FERHALR=EAN
maturity of less than three months FEERIRITIERR 58,452 70,285
93,559 153,957

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS ER R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 10. B R EHMEFRIE

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAET

Trade payables (note (a)) B2 IE (H5k@) 18,680 14,653

Accrued staff costs FESTB T A A 26,367 27,190

Other accrued expenses (note (b)) HhpfEsTRSZ (I5E(0)) 6,152 4,387

Other payables HAE g 1,680 324

Deposits BE 562 562

34,761 32,463

Notes: FE -
(@  Trade payables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both years. () MREEE > B85 ~EMRELLUETT
ﬁ o

BERSHAR ENZREHNEFRE
RERE DU

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date as of the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within one month — @A R 11,510 9,330
One to three months —ZE={EA4 5,482 3,529
More than three months = E)=EY 1,688 1,794
18,680 14,653
(b)  As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, other accrued expenses mainly (b)  7R2024%F %2023%3831H » M AEE

represented the accrued untaken paid leave to employees.

X TERERESE RZ AT RN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

20. LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the year:

20. HE &R

TRIITAEBRERZEEEGER
TEYBER

2024 2023
20245 20234
Present Present
Future value of Future value of
lease future lease lease future lease
payments  payments payments payments
R FRR
R EHR P GEN=ANEN
HEMAR A HEMR RME
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
Not later than one year TER—%F 568 507 87 86
Later than one year and not —FEBEBRERME
later than two years 568 533 - -
Later than two years and not MEBERERRE
later than five years 426 417 - -
1,562 1,457 87 86
Less: future interest expenses i, : <A BB (105) - (1) -
Present value of lease HEaBIRE
liabilities 1,457 1,457 86 86
Analysis for reporting MERENSNA
purpose as:
Current liabilities Wik =NE 507 86
Non-current liabilities IEREEE 950 -
1,457 86

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of HK$588,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$843,000).

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERE AR RAR

HE2024F3H31HIEFEE  A&ER
EREAEMNEIES R E A588,00058 7T
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21.

22.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

BANK BORROWINGS

21. IR1TE

Bank loans RITER

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET TFHET
938 2,506

All of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2024 and 2023

contained a repayable on demand clause and therefore the entire

bank loan balances for both years have been classified as current

liabilities.

Notes:

(i) All bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. As at 31
March 2024, the bank borrowings carried floating interest rates at 3.03%
(2023: 1.50%) per annum.

(i) As at 31 March 2024, the bank borrowings were secured by the leasehold

land and buildings held by the Group with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$23,191,000 (2023: HK$24,188,000).

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE
PAYMENTS

Under Employment Ordinance, Cap.57, an employee who
has been employed under a continuous contract for not less
than 5 years of service is eligible for LSP under the following
circumstances:

° The employee resigns at age of 65 or above;

o The employee dies during employment;

o The employee resigns on ground of ill health;

° The fixed term employment contract expires without being
renewed;

o The employee is dismissed which is not because of
redundancy or serious misconduct

22,

KEER2024F K2023F3831HB
FrEiRITERS A REXREEER K

e mEFEERN2MIRTER

HEERED

BansaiEe

Fd5E

(i)

(if)

FR B IRITERUB T E © 10202443
A318  RITERFAMZBFNELEE
£3.03/E (20234 : 1.50F) °

R2024F3831H  IRITERBLER
Fir 4% BR M3 {8 4923,191,0005% 75 (2023
£ 124,188,000/ T) 2 A E L KIEF
EIEH o

REIRB £ &

RIEFOTEREFG HEE

A=V

EERBERRTDIRENES KT
HIBERT  ARERRARBE

BE 655 3 ERER

BENRZEHFET ;

EERNRERAZRER

& 7 HA PR 2 18 & 49

-
& ;

B R E

EERBRELIFASZEHNREES
BETR

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
20244EFER

119



120

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024F3831HIEFE

22. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE

PAYMENTS (Continued)

The LSP benefit is determined with reference to the employee’s
last full month’s salary (capped at HK$22,500) and number of
years of service. An employee may also elect to use his average
wages in the 12 months immediately preceding the termination of
employment contract for the calculation. The LSP benefit is capped
at HK$390,000 for each eligible employee. The accrued benefits
derived from the Group’s mandatory contributions under the MPF
scheme in respect of that employee can be used to offset the LSP
benefit. Also, the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
permit the Group to offset long service payment payable against
the accrued benefits attributable to the Group’s contributions to the
ORSO Scheme.

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Cap.
485, the Group, as an employer, is required to make mandatory
MPF contribution at 5% of the employee’s monthly salary (capped
at HK$1,500). The Group makes the contribution to a trustee. MPF
scheme has attributes of a defined contribution plan.

The Group contributes 5% on the employee’s monthly salary to the
ORSO Scheme. The assets of which are held separately from those
of the Group in trustee-administered funds independently.

As detailed in note 2.2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Amendment Ordinance was enacted in June 2022 and the
Government of HKSAR announced that the Abolition will take effect
on the Transition Date.

The following key changes will take effect since the Transition Date:

- Accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory MPF
contributions cannot be used to offset the LSP in respect of
the employment period after the Transition Date.

- The pre-transition LSP is calculated using the last month’s
salary immediately preceding the Transition Date, instead of
using the last month’s salary of employment termination date.

- Employers cannot use the “carved-out benefits” from the
vested benefits of ORS contributions to offset employees’ SP/
LSP.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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TR -BREEREENERIRE S
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BRI AMRE —ERNFTET
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

22. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE 22. REARBERE @

PAYMENTS (Continued)

An actuarial valuation of long service payments was carried out RERBENEEGEHBILEE
at 31 March 2024 by independent professional qualified valuer, EERGEMAAREFEERAETRN
Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited, using the projected unit credit 2024 3A31HEATEMRE S AEE
method. 1To

Movements in the liability recognised in the consolidated statement GEeMBERIRTEINEEEDY
of financial position are as follows: T e

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FH5T FHET
At beginning of the year REY 10,008 10,946
Benefit paid from the plan KEsTENEN#ER (1,368) (1,077)
Remeasurements recognised in other REMIRS W m PR
comprehensive income: BHstE
Actuarial losses arising from changes in M BREHEENBEEE
financial assumptions 982 -
Expenses recognised in profit or loss: RIERPERNMES
Current service cost BIERRR#E B A 3,452 125
Interest cost RSV %N 403 14
3,855 139
At end of the year RER 13,477 10,008
Expenses of HK$3,855,000 (2023: HK$139,000) are included 33%3,855,00078 75 (20234 : 139,000
in general operating expenses in the consolidated statement of B Bt AGREEEmRERP KL
comprehensive income. A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

22.

23.

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE
PAYMENTS (Continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

22 EHIRFEZ S E @

RREMREANIEZFERKRUNT

2024 2023
20244 20234
Discount rate BRIRE 3.5% - 3.6% p.a. 3.2% p.a.
FE3.5%%3.6% B|H3.2%
Expected rate of future salary increase KR F S TARAIE S 3.6% p.a. 3.0% p.a.
SH3.6% S4£3.0%

DEFERRED TAX 23. IRIEIRIE

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities after
offsetting is presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position as follows:

REEMHBRRIRPE2FVIELERE
EEREERBESRERBEERN DU
e

2024 2023

20245 2023%

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHEx

Deferred tax assets FIEIRIBE B 133 -
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE (1,415) (1,932)
(1,282) (1,932)

At beginning of the year REH (1,932) (2,354)
Credited for the year (note 10) FREtA (FIzE10) 650 422
At end of the year REXR (1,282) (1,932)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

23 DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities prior to
offsetting balances within the same taxation jurisdiction during the

year is as follows:

FRRIERBEERBERE R

23. IRIEFRIA i)

BAREIRSHEREERTRVEEWM T ¢

Accelerated

Retirement tax

benefits depreciation Total

BRIKEF  MEERMMIARE “ast

HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

TFET TAET FET

As at 1 April 2022 2022%F481H - (2,354) (2,354)

Credited for the year (note 10)  FERETA (MF5E10) - 422 422
As at 31 March 2023 and $22023%3831H &

at 1 April 2023 202354 81H - (1,932) (1,932)

Credited for the year (note 10)  ERET A (i5E10) 646 4 650

As at 31 March 2024 12024F3831H 646 (1,928) (1,282)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

23. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 23. IR IE @)
As at 31 March 2024, deductible temporary differences of R2024F 3831 H > B30k & K E X8
HK$3,917,000 (2023: nil) has been recognised as deferred tax 3,917,000/ 7T (2023%F : &) ERER
assets. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of RIBELERIBEEE -HBARKAKA
the remaining HK$10,547,000 (2023: HK$10,235,000) as it is EEELXEZEREAN W EMGT
not considered probable that there will be future taxable profits 10,547,000/ 7% ( 20234 : 10,235,000
available. Brr) MERIRIEIRIBEE ©
As at 31 March 2024, the Group had unused tax losses of R2024F3H318 > AEBEB REAR
approximately HK$17,619,000 (2023: HK$14,940,000) available to TEE51E4917,619,0008 71 (20234
offset against future profits and may be carried forward indefinitely. 14,940,000 7t) °] B H MR K iG
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for such losses at FMowrmBHAEE BN S AHEME
the reporting date due to the unpredictability of future profit streams BE R AR A RB A mI TRRIE SR RS
in the relevant entities in Hong Kong. HE WA AERHEBEERELERBE
o
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, iR #
Number of
shares HK$’000
P& E FHET
Shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0.0O1E TR MG
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023, R2022F481H
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 202338310
2023F481H K2
024%FE3831H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: E#ZETRHE
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023, 202284818~
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 2023%FE3H31H ~
2023F4B1H &
2024%E3H31H 600,000,000 6,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

25. RESERVES

Group

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves for the years
ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 76. The natures and
purposes of reserves within equity are as follows:

@)

Share premium account of the Company represents the
excess of the proceeds (net of any incremented costs) from
issuance of ordinary shares received over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued.

25, {#H&

TEE

KEEE E2024F K2023FE3531H
tEEZ#ESHEBEENNE768
ZiREEnEHRN - REMEZME
RERMT

TRBRMGERESTERER
PRI ER 2 P 15 7R I8 (F0 B A {7 15
MRAE) BHARAT B ETRM
E{ERIERSD ©

(a)

() The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the b) AEBEEHHEBILHEESZHE
group reorganisation and represented the difference between AOoHEEESEHBETZAER
the consideration under the group reorganisation and the ERMBENBARKRAIEEZ
nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries then EHho
acquired.

(©)  The share option reserve represents the cumulative expenses ) ERERAEENEBHEREE
recognised on the granting of share options to the eligible M2HAEREBEREFEIR R
participants over the vesting period. TRz ©

Company AT

Share
Share Merger option Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
iR EE Attt BRERE R &R B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TER FTET
At 1 April 2022 2022%4H81H 48177 (10) 30 9,864 58,061
Final dividend approved and paid Bt /E K BRI HIARBRKRE - - - (8,838) (8,838)
Profit for the year and total FEREN RERAZARR
comprehensive income for ek
the year - - - 9,782 9,782
Share options lapsed BAMERRE - - 4 4 -
At 31 March 2023 and 1202338318 K
1 April 2023 2023%F481H 48,177 (10) 26 10,812 59,005
Final dividend approved and paid B3t ER B HIARBRE - - - (9,900) (9,900)
Profit for the year and total ERHENREAZAWR
comprehensive income for faz
the year - - - 5,121 5,121
At 31 March 2024 1R2024%E3831H 48,177 (10) 26 6,033 54,226
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024F3831HIEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was adopted
by the sole shareholder of the Company (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”). The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to aid the
Company in retaining key and senior employees of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 192,000. No share option may be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees of any member of the Group and any executive
directors of the Company.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
share option offered under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be equal to the offer price of HK$0.42 per share.

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to exercise the share
options granted during the option period under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme in the following manners:

(@ 50% of the share options granted to grantee under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or after
the first date on which dealings in the shares of the
Company commenced on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Date”) to the date immediately before the tenth
anniversary of the Listing Date; and

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

IKINEZERG

BEFRAE

26. fBhg st &l

(i)

BRA

]

R2017E 28210 » KA E) ME—
RN —TERERESE (TR
NHAEESRBRESEL - BX
NESE: m%k%+%%—ﬁ%
P EEENET ) HRILTY S HEWHED
$”Eﬁ%$%@IK&%ﬁE
g

3% & nl s Ag i 5t

FR T E R QR E S AR E
EIRENTE R EETME
MA FTETHNRMDEE LIRS
192,000/ IR IFE R AR EE
AR PR ST R H BB R B 5
BERRE AR EEAER
R o

BERZHEEUEAEETMAMN
BRAIZEAEZRIFERES N
RERBZERMRITES

AR N R AR R R AT A R
REAARBZMIBT AR

= o

MERAFHEEBERETEE
TREZ AR EBEREZ KRGS
REBEEAZEBER0.428T
GiEE

RBEERARE S BRES S
MEARARHZ BRESE T
REEF LTI D AR ERER
BRBEERAREER BRES
BIITREELZBARE -

(a) REERAFHZEFBIRE
ﬁ%?ﬁmﬁikﬁﬁw“
FrEEsE s/ (TEmA
) iz BESE EHHEE
FHEEE Rz HHEAM
BE B 130 A IR A 3% H50% 8 IR
T K



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(b) 50% of the share options granted to grantee under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on
or after the date falling on the first anniversary of the
Listing Date to the date immediately before the tenth
anniversary of the Listing Date.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are not transferable and share options not exercised
within the exercise period will lapse and cease to be of
further effect. All the share options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall lapse automatically and not be
exercisable (to the extent not already exercised) on the expiry
of the option period.

Share options granted prior to the expiration of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that time shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

26. lBIRHESE @

(i)

BR A MEEEr BT
2l ¢

(b) WEERLREENBERE
StEFR LT ESE—EE
FHERANZRERE LD
HEE +EBFHRIZ B
HA 13 B By ) B AR HH50%
B

BERAFREERBRESEIET
REZERESTSETER R
TERAR M R TTREZ BB IR A 2R
MBRABRBUD -BRAFHE
ERERESEIBETREZATA
FE e iR S BB e A HA 81 e B B
R KA BT (BLE R1TfE
ERMR) o

RERAHAEERBRESSE
w AR BB R ITERNER
REEBEENRREERARE
ERBRESE T FITE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26. BRG 2 @
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) () BXRAMBERBRRET
2 @@
The following tables disclose details of movements of share TREEZERBEER L AHEESHE
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme: B RE CEREES
1%
Year ended 31 March 2024 B E2024F3B3HILEFE

Number of share options

fEREHE
SHETG At Granted Exercised Lapsed At

option 1 April during during during 31 March
type 2023 the year  theyear the year 2024
fERRtE  102023%F 1220245
R 4818 FAKRE FATE FAREXM  3A31H

Director o
Ang Ming Wah JitBERZE Tranche 1 32,000 - - - 32,000
FE—itt
Tranche 2 32,000 - - - 32,000
B
Employees {EE
In aggregate & &t Tranche 1 40,000 - - - 40,000
FE—itt
Tranche 2 40,000 - - - 40,000
B
Total st 144,000 - - - 144,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

26. IR E @

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2023

(i)

BRAREErEIRES
2 ¢

B F2023F3A31HLEFEE

Number of share options

BREHE
Share At Granted  Exercised Lapsed At
option 1 April during during during 31 March
type 2022 the year the year the year 2023
BERGHE  R20226F 1220234
pgit) 4818 FERRH FRTE F/RKL%M 3H31H
Director 2=

Ang Ming Wah JitERZE Tranche 1 32,000 - - - 32,000

it
Tranche 2 32,000 - - - 32,000

BT

Employees BB

In aggregate =1 Tranche 1 52,000 - - (12,000) 40,000

it
Tranche 2 52,000 - - (12,000) 40,000

B
Total st 168,000 - - (24,000) 144,000

Details of the outstanding share options granted under the BIEBRAHEEERETE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows: BEZEHRTEBRESEN
T

Share option type Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price
fERg e sEEY BB 1T{EHAR 1TEE
Tranche 1 23 February 2017 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
S—H#t 20175%2H523H 20173160 £202743815H 0.4287T
Tranche 2 23 February 2017 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
BT 20174%2H523H 2018438 16H E2027438 15H 0.4277T

144,000 (2023: 144,000) outstanding share options are
exercisable as at 31 March 2024.

The share options outstanding at 31 March 2024 had
weighted average exercise price of HK$0.42 (2023: HK$0.42)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.96
years (2023: 3.96 years).

R2024%3H31H > 144,0001%
(20234 : 144,00013) i R{TfE
ZHERESIAIFITMHE

R2024FE3B31H M KITEZE
B REMMEF T HEES0.428 7T
(20234 : 0.427%7T) » HNH#EE
BRI FE L EIRA2.964 (2023
£ 1 3.964F) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024F3831HIEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i) Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was adopted
by the then sole shareholder (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to eligible participants of the Group and to promote
the success of the business of the Group.

The eligible participants include any employee (full-time
or part-time), director, consultant, adviser, substantial
shareholder, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer,
business partner or service provider of the Group. The basis
of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option
shall be determined by the Company’s board of director
(the “Board”) (or as the case may be, the independent non-
executive directors) from time to time on the basis of his
contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

The subscription price of a share respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price solely determined by the Board and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of
the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (i) the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of grant of the option.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to
the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option is HK$1.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company as from the
adoption date (excluding, for this purpose, shares issuable
upon exercise of options which have been granted but have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares in issue
as at the Listing Date. Therefore, it is expected that the
Company may grant options in respect of up to 60,000,000
shares (or such numbers of Shares as shall result from a
sub-division or a consolidation of such 60,000,000 Shares
from time to time) to the participants under the Share Option
Scheme.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed at any
time by approval of the shareholders in general meeting
provided that the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of approval of the refreshed limit. Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the refreshed 10% limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Group at any time
shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company
from time to time. No share options shall be granted under
any schemes of the Company (including the Share Option
Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit being exceeded.

26. BB G HE

(ii)

T2l )

BRHEETE @

BB HRERRIEERESTE
B2 725 B4 fr] EL fih B8 iR R 5t 21
FIRHEOFMEBREETMEM
AETHRMEE LR (Fitm
ECAEERAERHERERR
HEST B 30 A5 A B 1 ) Hoth B AR 4
SFEMERE AR BERERITE
mMmel FEETHRRMD) » & HAEE
BN ETHBE2IEETRDH
10% o At » FERR A A B AJ 1R 3R B8
BT 2EEREIRES
60,000,0008% A& {7 (35 & 7 B 4 A
o, & f#5260,000,0000% B& 15 ™ &
SHRDEE) BB

£ PR BY10% IR 28 7] BB B 45 AR
RERRAGLHEREN B
ERE B R 5t 8 R A AT EM
HithfE R Es 8 R U2 MER

e 17 15 70 20 A 5 17 80 1R 15 48
B 19 B AT T4 IR B 0

HEZTRMMW10% stHESE

H10%PR 28 5F > S i AR 35 B8 AR e
51 8 R A5 B AE ] H Ath B8 IR A 51
EERHNERE (BEREER
RE St B Ko 25 /A B A ) Hth B8 AR #E
SRR E RITE B
BRMNERE) FTEEER-

BEFELABER EREBR
RSt 8 K A & B AT ) L BB AR
STEIRE M RTENZEER
RETEMAEETHRD ©
ERR R FBEE RS E
BETRHNI0% MRERAD
MR8 (BEERESE) &
HRERER BB LMI0%AIR
B AR SR HERE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024F3831HIEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of offer
to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of offer to grant. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to

shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

In addition, any grant of an option to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company (or
any of their respective close associates) must be approved
by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the option). Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director (or
any of their respective close associates) will result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue; and having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of
share options will be subject to, in addition to the approval of

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

No share option under the Share Option Scheme has been

granted since its adoption.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

27. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme which is registered under the ORSO Scheme for certain
employees, the assets of which are held separately from those of
the Group in trustee-administered funds independently. The Group
contributes 5% on the employee’s monthly salary to the ORSO
Scheme.

The Group also operates a MPF scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed in Hong Kong. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employers and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The retirement scheme cost recognised in profit or loss represents
contributions paid or payable to the ORSO Scheme and the MPF
scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rule of the respective
schemes.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group had no significant
obligation apart from the contributions as stated above and
retirement benefits as stated in note 22 to the financial statements
and there is no forfeited contribution arose upon employees leaving
the retirement benefit schemes and which were available to reduce
contributions payable.

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

27.

28.

BEERAKEF

AEERETREREETRERERNAK
stEIEMz ERERAEN S Z
SECEERAERNEEDR AR
SEABEZESBURNA ~EERE
B R #5% M ER IR B HR -

FEBRTRBEEBRHEME QB E
o REEBZENEEETRES
S8 - BRTFERABUREAETE
B E BR AR AR5 8 - IRIRB AR & 51
g BRERHEERSEREERBAN
A5%[m & st B & B AR AR
£ R 730,000/ 77 ° Z 5t &I B9 7R 1L B
BEeo

EHEm PEBHRANGE RN EIEAE
EZLStERARENERABER
5t B Ko 3R 1R & 51 8 32 Y 2 1T B9 it

=+
o

FR2024 5 K 2023FE3831H » b _Lai it
TR B 75 %R 2k MY 5E 22 FF 1t B9 3R K 48 7
SN AREBWEEASE NERNES
B H R KA F) ot B 2 A R Uit =R
B AR TR o

BETABRERE

Contracted but not provided for:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

BEYE BERRE

BRI
2024 2023
20245 20234
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
98 23,410
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A 4

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no other significant transaction
with related parties for the years ended 31 March 2024 and
2028.

(i)~ The remunerations of key management personnel, which
are the directors of the Company during the year, were as
follows:

20. FAEF R 5

() MEEHBERREMIBOFIKE
E I B E20244F K2023FE3 4
SIHEFEE ~EBHEAEMS
KEAERRS o

(i) FER ETBEEAS BIERFAE
F) ZHMWT

2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Short-term employee benefits RHREE R 10,544 10,938
Retirement scheme contributions BKEHEIH =R 370 357
10,914 11,295
30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 30. EAEHIE

The Group’s capital management objectives are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
and to support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group, to ensure optimal returns to shareholders.
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KIBEZERE AR RAR

A48 PO 7 2 E IR B R A R A
SIEIEM R > LA KRR E MR 5
IR AR E R R - M R A
R MR E AR R AR BT
ERME

AEERBIERERREERER
Rig BEAEERKRNEELEZR U
BRARRERRERR-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

For capital management purpose, the directors of the Company
regard the total equity presented on the consolidated statement of
financial position as capital.

30. EAEIE

MEXAEEBNMES  AABDEFRAKT
B BRRRA2INRRERE R

2024 2023

20244 20234

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH5T FHET

Lease liabilities HEaE 1,457 86
Bank borrowings RITER 938 2,506
Total debt HETS 2,395 2,592
Total equity BT 211,300 211,285
Gearing ratio BEARBBLEXE 0.01 times 0.01 times
0.011Z 0.011&

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its use
of financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in its
investment activities. The financial risks include credit risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk and fair value risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarter, in close co-operation with the directors. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the Group’s
short to medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to
financial markets.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. It identifies ways
to access financial markets and monitors the Group’s financial
risk exposure. Regular reports are provided to the directors of the
Company.

.BEEEE

FEEEENEOBREEBRERNE
RETPTIEAEMIEAMERSE
MBERE MBEEREREEERR R
HESRR FRERRAFERR-

MERREERNAEEEHBRAE
ENBYEFERRAEE - EEMBRR
NEEERDSETRELRAERNTIE
HBEERE BRASHBLVHESHT
12 E R o

AEBENBRILIFFL LK BB MEE
NREEEEMIB -HYEEBERT
BREEAEBMBRARN S A WA
ERBEFRRERRS °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continvea)  31. B4 75 B b5 B IE @)

(@) Summary of financial assets and liabilities

(a) BERBTNEREER

by category BEHNE
2024 2023
20244 20234
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Financial assets ERHEE
Amortised cost: R IE AN FBR
Trade receivables B 5 EWIE 121,016 80,884
Deposits and other receivables g K E AR R IE 645 474
Cash and cash equivalents BERIEEEEY 93,559 153,957
215,220 235,315
Financial liabilities ERAMRE
Amortised cost: R IE AT AR
Trade payables B2 eI RIE 18,680 14,653
Accruals, deposits and other payables [Est&E R 2& &
HM A RIE 4,222 2,034
Bank borrowings RITEMR 938 2,506
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,457 86
25,297 19,279

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributed to its trade and
other receivables and cash and bank balances. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis and follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts.

For trade receivables, the Group reassesses the lifetime
expected credit losses at the end of the reporting period
to ensure the adequate impairment losses are made for
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of default
occurring since initial recognition.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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(b) EEREKR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

M. BFEKERE @
(b) EERK @

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk with two
customers with trade receivables of HK$72,156,000 (2023:
two customers of HK$45,236,000) as at 31 March 2024. The
Group measure the expected credit losses on individual basis
to these two customers. For other customers, the Group
measure the expected credit losses on collective basis.
As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the expected loss rates
applied in the provision matrix are determined with reference
to the debtors’ shared credit risk characteristics, including
background of the customers and their historical payment
behaviour, historical credit loss on the trade receivables and
information pertaining to the economic environment in which
the debtors operate.

The following table provided information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period:

R2024FE3831H  "EBEBERE
FEERK MEEFNEZRE
U IB 472,156,000 7T (2023
F | MAEF45,236,00087T) ©
REEREREERZMAER
AERAEEEE -EMER
Me AEEEEREESERE
BR= B 518 o 1020244 K% 20234
3318 ERNEBEEITELR
BEEENDKL2EGEHEANERE
ERBEE BEERAEERE
BEMRTA BZEKRIEN
BEEEEBREBAFEZK
BIRIE B NMERE -

TREHEBNRESPAREER
FRAEEERR KR E S BURIR
ZHBHEEBEZEN

Average
expected Gross

credit carrying Loss
As at 31 March 2024 loss rate amount allowance
1£20245%3H31H EEEEX IREARE EiaiEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THET
Not yet past due i A< 281 A 0.26% 44,125 113
Less than one month past due #H/D i —1@ B 0.45% 63,643 289
One to three months past due #HEI—Z =183 1.26% 6,652 84

More than three months BHA=EA UL
past due 6.61% 7,583 501
122,003 987
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

3. UBEREKEIE @
(b) EERK @

Average
expected Gross
credit carrying Loss
As at 31 March 2023 loss rate amount allowance
TE9TaEs
120233 831H EEBEX RERE Eia R
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FH7T
Not yet past due EESEEE] 0.11% 30,911 35
Less than one month past due #HA/ D> —1E 2 0.12% 41,371 50
One to three months past due #HI—Z =183 0.36% 4,459 16
More than three months BHA=EA UL
past due 2.88% 4,370 126
81,111 227

For deposits and other receivables, the Group has assessed
and concluded that the expected credit loss for these
receivables is insignificant based on the risk of default of
those counterparties under 12-month ECL approach. Thus,
no loss allowance was recognised as at 31 March 2024 and
2023.

The credit risk for cash and bank balances is considered
insignificant, since the counterparties are reputable banks
with high quality external credit ratings.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral
or other credit enhancement.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE2024%3831HIEEE

1. MFERAREE @

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables is as follows:

(b)

EERE @

BRRNRIAZ BIREFERED
mE

HK$’000
FET
Balance at 1 April 2022 2022481 H 2 i eR 153
Provision for impairment loss during the year, net & PUBU{BEES 18 B > 7H 58 74
Balance at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 1220235%3H31 H &2023%F4 818 Z 45 &H 227
Provision for impairment loss during the year, net £ PO BB S 1B B 4 > 7B 58 760
Balance at 31 March 2024 R202453H31 B 2 45 6R 987
(c) Liquidity risk (c) mEMEZREE
Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able MEE SRR EAEREEER
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabiltties. EHEHHSHEEEMNEENEA

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with bank covenants, to
ensure the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major banks and
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

SAM - AEEREBRREEES
REMEMREBEREMRES TR
BRI ET AR B EER
TREEERR-

AEBNBERAEREZEEL RS
BT ERRHERRTRENGR
B UEERAERER TR
REFBERRIBERRBRTRE
M EESENNEITNMER
B UEMEERRBERFRN
MBEZFKR

TRAPTEEESHREENERS
XN TENIBER THE
RAMBERERE (BERAS
MR R (2 F B A R) B
ST HHNRTAERFENF ER
B) REAEEFTERAXTHNER
BEf-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

M. BFEKERE @
mHEERERE @

(c)

Total Within More than More than
contractual one year oneyear  two years
Carrying undiscounted oron but within but within
amount amount demand two years five years
EHES)
KR  R-ER —&ENE MENLE
FREE EREEE] HEEKR ERREA ERIEA
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
THET THET THET THET THET
At 31 March 2024 142024538310
Trade payables B 5 ENzIE 18,680 18,680 18,680 = =
Accruals, deposits and ~ FEStE R LK
other payables HEGRIE 4,222 4,222 4,222 - -
Lease liabilities HEEE 1,457 1,562 568 568 426
Bank borrowings RITE™N 938 938 938 - -
25,297 25,402 24,408 568 426
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted one year or
amount amount on demand
E5THIRALIR R—FER
REE FIBKA%ER WILEK
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
T FHT FHT
At 31 March 2023 11202338318
Trade payables B S RRIE 14,653 14,653 14,653
Accruals, deposits and EEtER e M
other payables HhpE g 2,034 2,034 2,034
Lease liabilities HEaE 86 87 87
Bank borrowings RITER 2,506 2,506 2,506
19,279 19,280 19,280

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERE AR RAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

1. MFERAREE @

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company considered it is unlikely that the
banks will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company considered that the
bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled

(c)

REBEERARE @

ERIAAEBNYHR R &0
BESERR RITAIKRATERRB
ERUMNEBER - ERFNEFR
7 IRITEMRRE T KRBT
BYE R 175 5 P 8051 8 (3 7k B B E

payment dates set out in the loan agreements which are iR

summarised in the table below:

Total More than
contractual one year
Carrying undiscounted Within but within
amount amount one year two years
EHED)
KL —FME
ARE(E MIRLEE —FR EBRHREA
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHETT FAET TR
At 31 March 2024 12202443831H 938 947 947 -
At 31 March 2023 12202338 31H 2,506 2,564 1,622 942
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FU=R[E =

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from variable rate bank
balances and bank borrowings. Exposure to interest rate
risk exists on those balances subject to floating interest rate
when there are unexpected adverse interest rate movements.
The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk, working
within an agreed framework, to ensure that there are no
undue exposures to significant interest rate movements and
rates are approximately fixed when necessary.

AEBBF KRR B ZFBF]
KR BNRITERKIRTER
HHREARANEENRES
B AIAIXEREFERZERR
KA RS RR - AEBB K
REERBEERRNEEHELAN X
R ER o R IREARNRES
RAEARBSRR LEAS
ZREEBAF K-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #{ZFE2024E3H31HIEEE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(e)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the variables rate bank
balances and bank borrowings at the end of the year. The
analysis is prepared assuming amounts of these financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the year were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points increase
or decrease in the prevailing rates of relevant banks is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
for variables rate bank balance and bank borrowings, with
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$172,000 (2023: HK$408,000).

Fair value risk

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the Group’s financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERE AR RAR

1. MFERAREE @

(d) FIZERE @

(e)

B E D
TIBRED T ERFERBA
BRRBITHEERRIRITERBF
REABETE - ZAWHEBRKRINE
REREENZFEMIAZWN
BREFEAREREEMRR M

2EEAESRIM2HRAEE R
By e BAERIRITIRITH R A £F
o T EES0EER  EEEREH A
RHTFGIER L E B FH BT
fl o

fis SR1T 45 % S SR1T & "R BY ¥ B 7
= b3F /N RES0ME B B A it

MBI BRI % 05 A i 12 0, 8 20 49
172,000 75 (20234 : 408,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

32. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 2. REaRERERME

OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

METHEENEGEHEK:

Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings
HEaR IRITE™
(note 20) (note 21)
(F$5£20) (F45E21)
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAET FET
At 1 April 2022 H2202254H1H 494 4,034
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSR=EE .
Repayment of bank borrowings EIRIRITER - (1,528)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities A & & & 7~ % 2B 0 1 =% (408) -
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities 85 & &F] 8 2854 = (15) -
Total changes from financing cash flows MEIRE RS EIEEE (423) (1,528)
Other change: H g
Interest expenses MERE 15 -
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 22023FE3831A K
20234818 86 2,506
Changes from financing cash flows: MEREREEE .
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITER - (1,568)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilitiesfl & & & 4<% B {17k (216) -
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities 85 & & F] 8 285 4= (18) -
Total changes from financing cash flows MERER=EBEEE (229) (1,568)
Other changes: Hith&g) :
New lease WiEE 1,587 -
Interest expenses B 13 -
At 31 March 2024 7£20245%3H31H 1,457 938
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. Zx’A BB FER R R
THE COMPANY

2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M5 FHET FET
Non-current asset EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries I NI F 34 - -
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments SN 131 113
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS I B A B =RIE 56,119 58,159
Cash and cash equivalents BEKIBEEEY 4,104 6,785
60,354 65,057
Current liability mENEE
Accruals, deposits and FEstER - EE K
other payables Hh (I 128 52
128 52
Net current assets and net assets RBIEEFHEKRFEE 60,226 65,005
EQUITY L
Share capital &N 24 6,000 6,000
Reserves EE] 25 54,226 59,005
Total equity W 4REE 60,226 65,005
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 EEEEZ 2024568198 L ERIE
June 2024 and signed on its behalf by: BHEWAHULTRRESE .
Ng Sing Mui Sze Tan Nei
REEN Tt £ e
Director Director
BE Bx

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #ZE202453331HIEFE

4. RMB AT Z =

MEBABIBNT

Place of Equity interest owned
incorporation/ Issued ordinary by the Company
Name of subsidiary operation share capital At 31 March Principal activities
I BRTLER FAFH3ASH
MEAR LS R 2N HEENRRE FEEH
2024 2023
20245 20234
%
%
Directly held:
BEFE
Winson Group BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong Limited
KIEEBEEBRAT RBELHE/ IE BEEK
HH
Perma Growth BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100 100 Dormant
Investment Limited
KEBERRAE BBELHE/ 1%E7T i A B
H5H
Winson Global Asset BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited
KIBIRERE PR EBEZEE/ 1%E7T REER
BRAF B8
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT R R M5

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #;ZE2024FE38331HIEFE

34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 4. "MEB AT Z ¥R @
Place of Equity interest owned
incorporation/ Issued ordinary by the Company
Name of subsidiary operation share capital At 31 March Principal activities
SIS BETEER FABINIA3H
MEAERE LRy (i BERRE TEEH

2024 2023
20244 20234

%
%

Indiirectly held:
E1E1FE -
Winson Cleaning Service Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 100 100  Provision of environmental
Company Limited hygiene and related
services and airline
catering support
services
KIEEZRFBE RS HE 6,000,0007% 7T RERIREEE KRAERR
BURMERN LI
AR5
Winson Professional Pest Hong Kong HK$8,275,000 100 100 Provisions of pest
Control Company Limited management services
BIEEXERRERAE ) 8,275,000 7T RMEREERS
Wealthy Strong Hong Kong HK$6,652,026 100 100 Property holding
Investment Limited
EREERRLHE &4 6,652,026 7T MERE
Winson Inno Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Dormant
Investment Limited
KIERIRERBBRAF BB 10,0007 7T I RS
None of the subsidiaries of the Company had any debt securities BEARN QBN E R BN RSERIIER
outstanding at the end of or any time during the reporting periods. SEHNEREEEE TR AEBER

B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #(ZE20245F3H31HIEFE

35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 7 June 2024, Perma Growth Investment Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, (the “Purchaser”), entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Lask JV Holding Co. Ltd
(the “Vendor”) and Lask JV Facility Management Services Limited
(the “Target Company”), pursuant to which the Purchaser has
conditionally agreed to acquire, and the Vendor has conditionally
agreed to sell, 37.5% equity interests in the Target Company for a
cash consideration of RMB18,375,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,809,000). The Target Company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in provision of (i) property management services
for residential, commercial and office premises in the People’s
Republic of China; (i) security services; and (i) horticulture services.

This is a discloseable transaction and a connected transaction
and is subject to independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

At the date of issue of the consolidated financial statements,
this transaction is not yet completed. For further details of this
transaction, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 7
June 2024.

35. (R HHAIRF1H

R2024F687H > A RABINEZEN &
‘A ‘]Perma Growth Investment Limited
(TE 7)) #lask JV Holding Co. Ltd
(TER)) REBMITRIEEERBEA
[RAB (TEERE JILEE R &
- BFBEBRGERRWEME S B IKRG
FRHEBRARKRENIT.5%  RE
REA ARM18,375,0007c (FHERH
19,809,000 7t) - BEE R B R EK B
RNBEEEWEFORPEARSENEIR M
EE - BERBABFYVEEIER ;
() Z1RIRF 5 R(i)EZRF

WRBETRERMERS  AET LT
RABYIB IR R AL EFTE ©

MEEMBRERTZEEE ZXFE K
TR BBz ENE—SFE FS
B4 A T HHEA2024F687HBA L ©
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AT 2

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group & #% B A B Fr T B S BAZ AR S B TS IRER M
for the five years ended 31 March 2024, as extracted from the audited ZAREE & F£2024F3H31H It A EFEE /Y2
consolidated financial statements issued by the Company is set EBURBEREGEHEHINN T - HEL L
out below. The summary does not form part of the audited financial B AT IZ B FERFKA —EL 5 o

statements.

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20245 20234 20224 20214F 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET FEx FET FET

Results E4
Revenue Wz 470,707 462,197 473,685 529,987 569,559
Profit for the year FREF 10,897 24,745 22,096 73,809 20,702

Assets and liabilites BERKR&E

Total assets wEE 282,028 275,013 264,233 276,464 207,652
Total liabilities BE4ERE 70,728 63,728 68,855 67,782 72,779
Total equity B mABER 211,300 211,285 195,378 208,682 134,873

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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